
By: Yasser Al-Mayasi

SANA’A, April 30 — General

People’s Congress (GPC) leaders

declared this week their adherence to

Ali Abdullah Seleh’s candidacy for

another presidential term. They

released a statement reading: “we will

never accept anyone as our presiden-

tial candidate other than Ali Abdullah

Saleh.” 

Sheikh Yasser Al-Awadhi, deputy

head of GPC parliamentary bloc said

his party, considered the biggest polit-

ical organization in Yemen, will never

take part in Yemen’s upcoming presi-

dential elections if pressure fails to

convince Saleh to come back on his

decision not stand in the poll. 

In a statement to media, Al-Awadhi

confirmed the GPC will stand in the

poll as a voter without naming a pres-

idential candidate in this case. 

He indicated pressures on Saleh to

run for president have not succeeded

up until now. Al-Awadhi stressed that

GPC leaders will continue exerting

pressure on Saleh, saying he is opti-

mistic that the statesman will listen to

the voice of his party at the end, pre-

ferring the national interest to his

desire for rest. 

Head of PGC Media and Culture

Office Tareq Al-Shami said it is diffi-

cult for his party to name a candidate

other than Saleh. He added that

Saleh’s decision not take part in the

elections shocked the GPC and made

it in a critical situation. 

According to Al-Shami, if Saleh

insists on his decision, the ruling party

will only take part in the local elec-

tions and quit the presidential ones.

“Saleh is my only candidate for the

upcoming presidential race as the

GPC leaders unanimously agreed at

the party’s seventh general conference

in Aden last year”, he said. Al-Shami

insisted on what Al-Awadhi said earli-

er. 

GPC leaders have been putting

pressure on Saleh since he declared

ending his rule saying he wants to rest

and it is time for new youthful faces to

rule the nation in July 2005. 

Statements by the ruling party

fueled outrage among opposition

leaders who criticize behavior of GPC

o f f i c i a l s .

Y e m e n i

Socialist Party

leader Ali Al-

Sarari said the

ruling party’s

statements sig-

nify that the

GPC is the

p r e s i d e n t ’ s

party and not a

party for the people. “GPC does not

seek nor does it reflect ambitions of

the people,” Al-Sarari commented. 

Yemen’s political scene experiences

sharp controversies over the upcom-

ing presidential and local polls, cou-

pled with the Supreme Commission

for Elections and Referendum refus-

ing to involve other parties in voter

registration committees.

By: Yemen Times Staff

SANA’A, April 30 — The State
Security Specialized Penal Court
(SSSPC) scheduled Al-Qaida’s 19 sus-
pects final session for the 21st of this
month. This will be the suspects’ last
chance to defend themselves before the
final verdict is made. The defense
lawyers will present their last and
strongest evidence in the defense of
their clients who face charges of
involvement in an armed gang plotting
to kill foreigners in Yemen as well as
Yemenis, endangering the national
security, and forging ID cards and
passports. 

This was announced in yesterday’s
court session for the 19 Al-Qaeda sus-
pects including 4 Saudi citizens,
charged with connections with Al-

Qaeda network and accused of plotting
attacks against western interests in
Yemen. The court allowed prosecution
to respond to the appeal presented by
defense-advocates of suspects No. 18
and 19 Jalal Al-Kadas and Aqil Al-
Kuhali. At the hearing, suspects
renewed their denial of the charges
attributed to them, describing them as
false as they claimed to know each
other during their current imprison-
ment. 

During the hearing, suspect Mohsen
Bal’eed complained that he was sub-
jected to beating seven times in the
political security and insisted on his
extradition to Saudi Arabia, claiming
he is a Saudi and not a Yemeni. Bal’eed
confessed that he forged his ID card at
age 17, disguised to have the name
Ammar Ahmar Saleh Al-Hazmi for the
purpose of traveling to Iraq. 

The other Saudi suspect Mohamed
Al-Qahtani confessed that he came
from Iraq in the company of an Iraqi
patient, one of those injured in Iraq
battles. He said he will surrender him-
self to the Saudi Embassy in Damascus
but fears torture. Al-Qahtani denied
that he does know other suspects say-
ing it was only in prison when he rec-
ognized them. 

All suspects claimed the main rea-
son for their trial is traveling to Iraq.
Confirming their sentiments they
shouted from inside the dock, “Allah is
the Greatest, Victory to Islam,
Muslims, Usama Bin Laden, Aiman
Al-Dhawahri, Mus’ab Al-Zarqawi and
all militants in the Islamic countries.” 

The defense-team termed the trial a
drama and demanded the court judge
not to play along, labeling the indict-
ment as false, as no crime actually hap-
pened. It called for the court not to pro-

long the case-related procedures or
withhold the case. Lawyer of Saudi
suspects Abdulmalik Al-Sanabani said
prolonging case procedures and trials
constitutes an extra burden on the sus-
pects’ families who attend each ses-
sion. 

At another session, the court dis-
cussed case of Nawaf Mohamed
Behaibeh, 23, accused of harboring
and hiding suspects Jamal Al-Badwi
and Fahd Al-Qasa’a after they escaped
from Aden political security prison in
April 2003. The pair is charged with
bombing the USS Cole.  

The prosecutor read out the indict-
ment, explaining that Nawaf Behaibeh,
along with others, formed an armed
gang that assaulted officials authorized
to arrest Al-Badwi, Al-Qasa’a and
other wanted suspects. Behaibeh
denied the charge attributed to him by
the prosecutor. “The charges are false
and confessions were made due to psy-
chological pressure,” he said. 

The court concluded the session to
enable Behaibeh’s lawyer to view the
case file and the prosecutor to present
evidence in support for the indictment. 

Al-Badwi, Al-Qusei’ and eight other
suspects are accused of the USS Cole
Attack in October 2000. They escaped
Aden political security prison in April
2003 and were recaptured. In
September 2005, Al-Badwi was sen-
tenced to death, but the Appeal Court
reduced the sentence to a 15-year
imprisonment term. Under the prelimi-
nary verdict, Al-Qusei’ was sentenced
to ten years in prison. Suspect Jamal
Al-Badwi escaped along with other 20
accomplices through a tunnel stretch-
ing from the political security prison in
Sana’a to a nearby mosque last
February.  

By: Yemen Times Staff

SANA’A, April 30 — In a press
release, of which a copy was obtained
by the Yemen Times, Quit Power
Movement for Peaceful Democratic
Change (QPMPDC) approved chang-
ing its name into the Yemeni
Movement for Change (YMC). 

The decision was taken at the QPM-
PDC commissioner’s extraordinary

meeting on April 15 following a series
of discussions, dialogues and exchange
of viewpoints between movement
members and supporters. 

The movement’s statement said
tasks and responsibilities were distrib-
uted among the YMC staff. Rashad
Salem Ali was appointed a commis-
sioner of the movement and Hussein
Zeid Ibn Yahya its official spokesman. 

The YMC decided to send a letter to
Joint Meeting Parties (JMP), as it con-
siders this coalition the cornerstone for
peaceful and democratic change in the
country. According to the YMC, the
JMP is responsible for building a dem-
ocratic, parliamentary and civil system
of governance in Yemen, but it cannot
achieve this goal alone without any
allies. 

In its letter, the YMC called on
opposition parties and civil community
organizations to form a broader elec-
toral coalition under the name of
“National Democratic Congregation”
to involve all public forces inspiring
for a new Yemen and democratic gov-
ernance. It added: “for the sake of
comprehensive political reform, the
congregation members will take part in
Yemen’s presidential and local elec-
tions under the slogan ‘Nation is for
all’.” 

The YMC stated it plans to include
all public forces inspiring for change
and political reform in a unified front
to manage the upcoming elections and
achieve real reforms meeting expecta-

tions of the Yemeni people. The front is
expected to be termed “Historic Bloc
for Change.” 

According to the YMC statement, all
the social forces, particularly the JMP
are responsible for achieving a peace-
ful and democratic change and com-
prehensive political reforms via a
unanimously agreed project to boost
role of civil community organizations
and Yemeni opposition. 
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SANA’A, April 30 — A French citi-

zen is currently being held in the

political security custody for no obvi-

ous reasons according to the National

Organization for Defending Rights

and Freedoms (HOOD). 

The organization reported to the

Attorney General Dr. Abdullah Al-

Olufi that it received a statement from

the family of the French citizen

named Ahmed Dedosh confirming his

illegal arrest since January 2 this year.

They also complained that he has

been tortured during the detention. 

HOOD stated that this arrest is ille-

gal as it violates Article No 48 of the

Yemeni constitution and Article No 7

of the penalty law procedures.

According to Article No 246 of the

crime and penalties law, foreigners’

dentition is a crime that deservers a

five-year imprisonment.

Ismael Yaqbu is the second French

detainee who has been reported by

special sources to the Yemen Times as

being held since long for no obvious

reason. The only information the

newspaper received is that he recent-

ly converted to Islam and is held now

at the Political Security prison with-

out clear charges. The same source

says that there is another detainee in

the prison holding German nationali-

ty and married to a Yemeni. The

source says the German is also

detained with no clear charges.

Foreigners detained in
Yemen without clear charges

GPC leaders: We will
accept nobody but Saleh

Last chance for Al-Qaeda suspects

Al-Awadhi Al-Shami Al-Sarari



By: Yemen Times Staff 

SANA’A, April 30 — The
Department of English of Sana’a
University’s Faculty of Education is cur-
rently undergoing a thorough evaluation
by an International Quality Assurance
Team funded by the United Nation
Development Program (UNDP). This
spans the period from April 27 to 31st of
May 2006.  The review team is both
from the British quality assurance and
some Arabs. The UK Reviewers are Dr.
Robert Schofield, Review Coordinator,
and Dr. Frank Adams, a Review
Specialist. The Arab Review Specialists
are Dr. Mezianne Mohamed, Director,
Scientific Council, Faculty of Social
Sciences, Oran Essenya, Algeria and Dr.
Ali Ahmed Ali Madkour, Dean, Institute
of Education, Cairo University, Egypt. 

The review team began Saturday April
27, by meeting the senior staff: Dean,
Vice Dean, head of the Department, etc.
Then they met the program staff. A long
session of about three hours took place
to discuss varied aspects of the program:
academic standards. The revisers met the

students of the
department and
were impressed by
the students. This
was followed by
another meeting
with the staff to
discuss the learn-
ing opportunities
and progression.
Meeting with for-
mer students who
graduated from the
department was
very fruitful and
delightful at the
same time. Dr.
Robert Schofield said: "The former stu-
dents were more than excellent." 

The review team met people who
were concerned with the quality assur-
ance: the dean, vice dean for academic
affairs, Dr. Mahoub Ana’am, Dr. Ayid
Sharyan, Dr. Jayraman, Dr. Mohammad
Al-Mekhlafi.  Today the report is to be
drafted while on Tuesday the team is
going to give an oral feedback in the
presence of the rector and faculty mem-

bers.
This project comes as a result of an

agreement between Sana’a University
and the UNDP. The review program is
entitled Enhancement of Quality
Assurance and Institutional Planning at
Arab Universities. It selects some uni-
versities from the Arab World to review
their programs to draw attention to any
shortcomings and enhance the quality of
higher education.
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By: Saleh Al-Batati

HADRAMOUT, April 30 — As part of
its preparations for the Fourth University
Student Week, Hadramout University of
Science and Technology launched on
Saturday the first media course, which is
due to last until Wednesday May 3. The
course involved 48 students from
different faculties in the university and is
attended by media personnel and
professors majoring in media. The course
plan covers visits to media institutions. 

Hadramout Information Office
Manager Ali Baqi expressed said that the

course constitutes a crucial step toward
developing students’ talents and media
skills. He emphasized the need for
opening a media college at the University
to meet the needs of applicants. 

Delivering the university speech, Prof.
Abdullah Bahashwan praised the media
personnel for covering events of the Third
University Student Week. He hoped that
students to do their best during events of
the Fourth University Student Week due
to take place this month.  

Bahashwan advised students to apply
what they learn in real-life situation and
utilize experiences of participating media

personnel and briefed them on how to
convey facts objectively and honestly. 

He promised to issue the first
newspaper in the university in the coming
weeks to publish activities of the
university and help students apply what
they learn. 

The course’s inaugural ceremony was
held in the presence of Prof. Abdullah
Hussein Al-Ja’afari, the University vice-
rector for Academic Affairs and Dr.
Salem Mohamed Bin Salman, General
Manager of Students’ Activities and
Services at the university and many
lecturers.

SANA’A, April 29 — Yemen and
Czech Republic signed a 5-year develop-
ment cooperation agreement between
Saturday, under which Czech will fund
Yemeni projects in areas of water, human
development and electricity. 

Yemeni Minister of Planning and
International Cooperation Abdulkarim
Al-Arhabi represented Yemen while
signing the agreement with Czech
Foreign Minister Peter Pethari during his
three-day visit to Yemen. 

Both sides discussed ties of mutual
cooperation between the two friendly
countries and how to further develop

relations in political, economic, trade and
investment areas. 

Al-Arhabi stressed Yemen’s interest to
enhance its relations with Czech to help
fulfill joint ambitions and interests. He
pointed out the cooperation agreement
reached with the Czech Government
functions as a frame for organizing assis-
tance and listing priority projects in dif-
ferent sectors to be implemented during
the period 2006-2010, coinciding with
the third five-year plan for development
in Yemen. 

In his turn, the Czech Foreign Minister
showed his country’s interest to strength-

en its relations with Yemen in different
political and economic areas, and activate
relations of cooperation between private
sectors in both countries and encourage
Czech investors in initiate businesses in
Yemen, particularly in the sectors of oil,
gas, infrastructure, water and tourism. 

Pethari ascertained that his govern-
ment is ready to offer assistance to
Yemen to develop human resources, as
well as scholarships for Yemeni students
to study in Czech. He declared his gov-
ernment would implement a water desali-
nation project in the Yemeni Island of
Socotra.

(Clockwise) Dr. Mezianne Mohamed, Dr. Frank Adams,

Dr. Robert Schofield, and Dr. Ali Ahmed Ali Madkour

discussing the program with the Department’s postgrad-

uates.

Sana’a University: a thorough
evaluation by international team

Imad Al-Saqqaf 
Taiz Bureau 

Al-Saeed Foundation for Sciences and
Culture organized in Taiz city on 27 April
2006 a ceremony for distribution of the
late Haiyel Saeed Anam prize for Science
and Arts. The ceremony was under
patronage of foreign minister Abubakr
Al-Qirbi and the governor of Taiz gover-
norate Ahmed Abdullah Al-Hijri.  

At the beginning of the ceremony, Dr.
Al-Qirbi delivered a speech expressing
his great pleasure and pride at the level of
the foundation performance toward the
society and the activity that is being held
annually and for the ninth time. He added
that repetition of the event was not for the
purpose of media propagation but rather
for what it offers to Yemen characterized
by all meanings of true understanding of
the problems of scientific research,
appraising the efforts of the council of
trustees and leadership of the foundation
in their absolute seriousness and in man-
aging matters related to the prize aloof
from any influences or calculations out-
side the committee. He added that aim
was that the prize could be of a genuine
value in honoring of all Yemeni creative
and researchers who present the scientif-
ic production in contribution to enhance-
ment of human thought. It demonstrates,
through its multiplicity, image of the
Yemeni researcher. Dr. Al-Qirbi also
emphasized that the prize would not be
awarded except to those who meet scien-
tific terms and criteria.

The foreign minister stressed the
importance of being armed with science
and knowledge instead of explosives and
to keep away from then thought of accus-
ing others with blasphemy and extrem-
ism and to tackle ideas with dialogue. He
insisted that the groundwork from which
to start should be based on love, justice

and peace, praising the private sector role
and the businessmen as well as the role
played by Al-Saeed Foundation in contri-
bution to encouragement of scientific
research and culture as they constitute the
essential pillar of development and
growth.

The ceremony was also addressed by a
number personalities among them Mr Ali
Mohammed Saeed Anam, chairman of
the prize trustees council, the member of
Shoura Council and Mr Mohammed Ali
Al-Farran, the winner of the prize of the
ninth session. Director-General of Al-
Saeed Foundation for Science and
Culture Faisal Saeed Farie reviewed in
his welcoming address the prominent and
pioneering role of the foundation in
encouraging science, scientists and
researchers and in holding of many cul-
tural and scientific activities. Mr Farie
had also announced about expansion m
of the foundation activity and opening
opportunity for all researchers from Arab
countries. 

Dr. Yusuf Mohammed Abdullah had
earlier read out decisions of the arbitra-
tion committee for the prize that had been
withheld from five of its fields due not
meting criteria and provisions of the
prize. In the sixth field the prize was
awarded to Islamic studies by researcher
Ali Al-Farran for his research titled

“Impact of endowment,
inheritance and social
joint responsibility”. The
ceremony also granted
the foundation’s coat of
arms and honored the
French Cultural Center
for antiquities and social
Sciences and a number
of literary and scientific
personalities. The prize
awarding ceremony was
attended by deputy of the

ministry of culture Hisham Ali bin Ali,
Sheikh Abdulrahman Mohammed Ali
Uthman, Dr. Mohammed Abdullah,
member of the Shoura Council and a host
of intellectuals and those interested in sci-
entific affairs. 

On the other hand, the governor of Taiz
Ahmed Abdullah Al-Hijri and Dr.
Hussein Al-Amri, member of the Shoura
Council and Dr. Yusuf Mohammed Ali
Abdullah, deputy of the ministry of cul-
ture for antiquities affairs opened on
Wednesday 26 of April Taiz International
Fair for the Book and Information
Technology, organized by Al-Saeed
Foundation for Science and culture
(26April-5 May 2006) at Al-Saeed
Exhibitions Hall. Eighty publication
establishments and houses from six Arab,
in addition to Yemen, countries take part
in the fair. Mr Farie told Yemen times that
the number of book titles of this year
amounted to 150 thousand titles on cul-
tural, political, religious, medical fields
as well as university and children books
and software and computers. It may be
recalled that some Arab countries are tak-
ing part for the first time in this year such
as Tunisia, represented by the Arab
Organization for Education, culture and
Sciences in addition to France by the
French center for Antiquities and Social
Sciences.

Yemen, Czech sign cooperation agreement

For Yemen Times

SANA'A, April 29 — Yemen have
joined the Global Partnership for Clean
flues and Vehicles, stated the Chairman
of the Environmental Protection
Authority, Mr. Mahmoud M. Shidiwah.
“While it is both technically and eco-
nomically feasible to phase out leaded
gasoline in Yemen, there is a need to
implement a number of measures to
overcome restraints. In supporting this
aim we have joined the Global
Partnership for Clean Fuels and
Vehicles,” he sated.   

“Furthermore, we have launched in
cooperation with the United Nations
Environment Programme a project aim-
ing at national commitment building to
phase out leaded gasoline. Pilot blood
lead level measurements will be taken in
Sana’a, the results of which will feed
into a national workshop,” he added.  

Yemen is one of the only 25 countries
in the world still using leaded gasoline.
Human exposure to lead is a serious
health problem. Lead is a hazardous
heavy metal and a known neurotoxin. It
has been shown that even at a low level
of exposure to lead, such as below 10
microgram/dl can cause serious and per-
sistence damage to the nervous system.
Children’s health is most vulnerable to
lead because their nervous systems are
not fully developed. 

CIM-Expert within the Ministry of
Water and Environment, Dr. Lia
Sieghart said that 

Airborne lead is one of the most seri-
ous urban air pollutants in Yemen. More
than 85% lead emissions from automo-
biles consists of highly toxic inorganic

lead, which is easily absorbed into the
body due to the small size of combus-
tion derived lead particles. “A recent
assessment concludes that the annual
economic cost of air pollution in Sana’a
is estimated at around US$ 100 million.
However, the introduction of clean fuels
and vehicle technologies would not only
benefit the health and environment in
the cities, but also contribute to address-
ing regional and global environmental
issues such as transboundary air pollu-
tion and global warming,” says Dr. Lia
Sieghart. 

“The use of leaded fuel prevents the
use of catalytic converters. Catalytic
converters can be instrumental in
improving the air quality in Yemen’s
cities as they reduce vehicle emissions
by more than 90%.” she added. 

“We feel, although lead phase-out is
expected to be a highly cost-effective

measure - particularly in terms of the
impact on health and the environment -
strong commitment, the appropriate pol-
icy intervention, public awareness and
understanding forms part of a broad,
consensus-building effort,” says the
Minister of Water and Environment,
Eng. Abdul-Rahman Al-Eryani. “The
lack of information and misconceptions
concerning the use of unleaded gasoline
in older passenger cars presents one of
the largest obstacles to changing con-
sumer behavior. We see that efforts need
to be concentrated on informing the
public on risks posed by lead. Our next
aim is the development of a country
strategy and an action plan to phase out
leaded fuel. The proposed strategy
would help identifying the appropriate
mix of instruments needed and thereby
paying attention to country–specific fea-
tures,” concludes the Minister.

Yemen joins Global Partnership 
for Clean Fuels and Vehicles

Yemen is one of the only 25 countries in the world still using leaded gasoline.

A view of the awarding ceremony.

Haiyel Saeed Prizes for Science
& Arts, distribution ceremony

By: Yemen Times Staff

SANAA — Dr. Abdulrahman Al-
Baidhani said “If president Ali Abdullah
Saleh has changed his declared stance and
nominated himself to the upcoming pres-
idential elections, it would be my great
hope to jointly take part in a debate where
we will debate what Yemen is suffering of
unemployment, poverty, hunger, suicide
and terror and how to treat these diseases
the Yemeni people are suffering.”

In a message he had sent to Yemen
Times last Saturday, Al-Baidhani said “I
would welcome a debate with the presi-
dent on causes of this suffering and why
has it begun? How did it continue? Why
the existing governance was enable to
treat it? Why does it want to continue in
this inability which the world states talk
about, to the extent we have been
described as the poorest country on
earth?” 

Al-Baidhani asked the latest three suc-
cessive heads of government to admit
their failure in effecting any reform, as

was that confirmed by the former deputy
premier Ahmed Soufan who had told the
media that Yemen had become the poor-
est country in the world. 

Dr. Al-Baidhani emphasized in his
message he would not at all events back
down from nominating himself and that
his stance was that because  the majority
of the Yemeni people’s conditions have
reached the summit of poverty and the
state’s negligence in tackling this tragedy
despite its knowledge of its diagnosis and
cure. He said “The situation dictates on
everyone capable to volunteer to save the
people and turn a new chapter for the
birth of the modern state for which the
revolution broke out.”

Dr. Al-Baidhani concluded his message
by saying “No doubt you have followed
up some mercenary writers who have
been trying to fill with suspicion the legit-
imacy and eligibility of some contesters
for nomination to the presidential elec-
tions. Among such that is what some have
alleged that my wife is a foreigner in an
attempt to exclude me from nomination,

whereas the
reality is that
my wife was
Egyptian then
acquire the
Y e m e n i
na t i ona l i t y
fifty years
ago, i.e.
before the
revo lu t ion .
His Majesty
the late Imam
Ahmed had
ordered to
consider her a Yemeni and supplied her
with a Yemeni passport and then granted
her a diplomatic passport which she is
still keeping it. She had used to smuggle
weapons to the revolutionaries from
Egypt until the outbreak of the revolution.
Some of them are still alive to testify
because they used to receive those
weapons at Cairo airport secretly, expos-
ing her life to danger of the Imamate
regime spies.”

Al-Baidhani proposes 
debate with president Saleh

Al-Baidhani

SANA’A — A scientific study distrib-
uted to the media and published by News
Yemen some days ago warned against the
existence of a real danger facing the
Yemeni youth, males and females, due to
aggravation of alphabetical illiteracy and
spread of illiteracy of knowledge.

The study was conducted by 37
researchers in 100 districts of 10 gover-
norates and targeted 3 thousand youths of
both sexes. It indicated that 26.9% of
youth did not enroll in education, 39.3%
had previously joined education and
33.7% are presently enrolled in educa-
tion. The study attracted the attention that
the educational process does not suffer
from the quantity and capabilities as
much as it’s suffering from corruption of
administration, the type of curricula and
inefficiency or poor qualification of the
teacher and respect of the profession,
which should be focused on more than
other maters. 

48.4% of those subjected to research
were unanimous that the solution for rais-
ing the level of education lies in providing
efficient teachers, 45% thought in
improvement of curricula. The study
demanded for more qualification and
training of teachers, reforming the admin-
istration of schools, and development of
curricula in harmony with requirements
of development and speeding variables of

science and knowledge, and also the curb-
ing of political and partisan investment in
the educational process. 

The study focused on studying knowl-
edge and tendencies of the youth and dis-
cussing the needs of information. It
included the age segment of 13-29 years,
and was supervised by the government
National Council of Population and the
support from international organizations
and Yemeni government parties, revealed
that the youth do not realize he problem
of imbalance between the volume of pop-
ulation and available resources as well as
the problems of environment. It revealed
that 2.6% of them understand the envi-
ronment problem and 2.9% are aware of
the responsibility concerning the prob-
lems of environment, a matter the study
deemed as a state heralding a dangerous
deterioration required to be faced among
the youth circles and should be enlight-
ened about it. The youths were unani-
mous that the population problems con-
fronting them were those pertaining to
economy (27%) and unemployment
(23%), and 67% of them view that the
solution was in providing job opportuni-
ties. The study has revealed that 96.9% of
female youth and 89% of male youth do
not support the habit of smoking and that
of qat-chewing, nonetheless, the study
demanded not depend on this result

because the youth tendencies in the socie-
ty tend  to cover up the problem instead of
admitting it in preparation to solve it. 

On the role of youth and their social
participation, the study explained that
80.7% view that their participation in
elections is very important against 3.1%
who think of the non-importance of their
taking part in elections. The study consid-
ers this a positive development of aware-
ness concerning the importance of politi-
cal participation through elections, some
of them attributed rating 26.7% attributed
non-participation in political activities to
the spread of illiteracy and 20% to non-
conviction in the importance of participa-
tion. 

On the sexually communicable dis-
eases, 53% of the polled youth view that
they are aware of the diseases transferred
sexually, 70% from male youth, and 95%
of them know that AIDS is one of those
diseases, while 78.8% of them mentioned
they knew about those diseases through
television programs and other media
instruments and awareness symposiums. 

The study stressed the importance of
focusing on rural areas in holding sympo-
siums dealing with reproduction health
topics and finding suitable ways to reach
the youth who are not enrolled in schools
in order to enlighten them on matters
related to re[production health.

Dangerous illiteracy rise
among youth in Yemen

First media course for Hadramout students kicks off



Q. Can you please explain the

reasons for your bid to stand in

Yemen’s upcoming presidential

elections?

A. I declared my bid for presidency

since I have a complete vision to

change the current situations in

political, economic and social areas.

This was included in my electoral

program, which I presented several

months ago and the program covers the

main features for my vision of change.

As I did not find any visions for

change, similar to mine, by other

personalities declaring their intentions

to run for presidency, this made decide

to stand for office in the upcoming

presidential elections.

Q. Do you think candidates will

demonstrate a fair competition in

case President Saleh does not back

out on his decision not stand in the

elections?

A. Whether Ali Abdullah Saleh quits or

insists on staying in power, the

prevalent situation, particularly relating

to the electoral management and the

state’s relations with the ruling party

make it impossible for candidates to

have fair competition. 

Q. What is the likelihood of any

citizen to become president of

Yemen?

A. In the shadow of corrupt regime

controlled by military and tribal forces

and showing dominance over the

government institutions, it is

impossible for the country to have free

and fair elections based on the principle

of equivalence and real competition. As

no minimum guarantees to ensure fair,

free and transparent elections are

available, it is a waste of time and

effort to take part in the ballot. A

patriotic government is needed to be

responsible for supervising and

managing the electoral process and this

proposal was presented several years

ago by x-president Ali Nasser

Mohamed, who encouraged a

parliamentary decentralized system

rather than a presidential one The

proposal is practical and objective and

without it, free and fair poll will be

impossible, particularly as the Supreme

Commission for Elections and

Referendum (SCER) violated the law

and the constitution and proved to be

unfair and partial. In addition, effective

international monitoring and

supervision of the upcoming

presidential elections are necessary to

ensure a poll with at least the minimum

of integrity and transparency. 

The general situations in the country

have gone from bad to worse,

seemingly breeding an atmosphere of

anarchy. Unless the upcoming

presidential elections change the

current regime, the time period for

change to take place will be long. Good

will is very important for change,

which is impossible to achieve as the

current regime appears disabled and

bankrupt. 

Q. What are the successful aspects of

your electoral political program you

presented to the public?

A. The electoral program, which I

presented is not theoretical, rather it

involves practical mechanisms such as

establishing a federal regime to end the

absolute centralization of governance

and set an outline for administrative

division to achieve this goal in its

important areas, mechanisms and

legislations. Additionally, the program

suggested a list of clear solutions to

eradicate poverty and unemployment

in the country and achieve social equity

in the framework of an open economy

providing facilities and motives that

boost investment. There was a list of

practical solutions to eradicate revenge

and tribal killing, integrate tribes into

the civil community and positive

political participation, in addition to

other solutions regarding military and

security institutions. Nevertheless, I

believe there is more tendency and

likelihood to apply the program easily

as long as will and commitment are

there. 

Q. What is your viewpoint about the

likelihood of a JMP candidate to win

the upcoming presidential elections? 

A. JMP represents the earnest and real

political opposition. Consequently,

these parties are obliged to fulfill their

general political duty, particularly the

right to stand in the upcoming

presidential elections through their

consensus on a single presidential

candidate, meeting the following

requirements such as to be:  strong and

have a large number of supporters, a

real and serious rival and well-qualified

and competent enough to manage the

country in the shadow of difficult and

exceptional conditions. If the JMP

cannot fulfill such a persistent and

urgent need, it will have negative

impacts on the opposition role,

presence and influence in the political

scene. What applies to presidential

elections does too to the local elections.

I think there is a historic opportunity

before the JMP to play the role of a real

opposition and they are eligible to take

the responsibility. 

Q. What in your opinion are the

effective solutions to rescue the

country from its current situation?

A. Whether I win the elections or not,

my electoral program includes multiple

solutions, remedies and mechanisms to

rescue the country from the current

situation. With regard to how this will

be achieved, we have no choice to

make change except for the ballot

boxes despite the fact the current

regime will not give up power

voluntarily. I think the majority of

Yemeni people have reached the point

of explosion because of being unable to

tolerate issues of corruption, poverty,

unemployment and suffering. Yemeni

people are ready to make a change

through the elections. The most

important thing is that how can we

achieve elections with at least

minimum integrity and transparency

and not exposed to vote fraud. Only

through this, one can be sure that the

Yemeni people are able to make. To

make myself clear, if you ensure me

free and fair elections, I will ensure you

comprehensive change, which is the

greatest challenge facing us. 

Q. Is the Yemeni opposition able to

fulfill people’s needs and ambitions?

A. I think the opposition is able to do so

in case its current coalition grows into

a front or a unified political bloc,

representing the JMP even if this bloc

only includes the Islah, Yemeni

Socialist and Nasserite parties. Only in

this case I confirm that the opposition

will play a pivotal and primary role in

the sought political change. Now, the

opposition has before it a historic

criterion represented by the upcoming

presidential and local elections, and

these parties’ future is determined by

their will to make change. 

Q. You talked about the federal

governance. Do not you mind giving

us more details about this issue?

A.Throughout my life, I never heard

that federalism in managing state and

society’s affairs leads to dividing

countries except through the official

media in Yemen. Federalism is no

threat to the national unity, in fact it

helps enhance and strengthen unity.

But the real concern of the official

media is consolidating and reserving

corruption not the unity claiming that

unity opposes federalism. Federalism is

a complete political system recognized

by nations worldwide and I think there

is no need to explain it even from the

theoretical point of view. But from the

practical point of view, federalism has

roots deeply extending to our national

and regional history. The tribal

structure, its traditions and relations

constitute part of the federalism and

since old times, Yemen has never

stabilized except through federalism

and this fact was cited during the eras

of Sheba, Hemyar and Ma’een, as well

as during the Islamic and Ottoman eras.

Therefore, Yemeni liberals advocate for

federalism. 

Q. You were one of those opposing

1994 Civil War. From your point of

view what are the war’s

consequences that the Yemeni

citizens still suffer today, and are

there any possible solutions for

them? 

A. All the events the country went

through starting with pre-re-unification

wars until 1994 Civil War broke out

over ethnical and regional conflicts. As

governance in Yemen is based on

absolute centralization, the problem

has been represented by flagrant

contradiction between governance on

the top place and facts and

geographical and population

considerations on the bottom. There is

a category in the form of a small

village, which rules the country and the

Yemeni people. Out of the people it

made a special feudalism for it. This

category by all means wants to

maintain its dominance, which is not in

line with reality until the final minutes

of life. This is the main factor that fuels

recurring political and social crises in

the country and it is bound to continue

fueling catastrophic crises in the days

to come. I do not know why there is an

objection to a president from the

southeastern area to rule the country. I

have no objection to this proposal that

has become an urgent national need to

maintain unity and ensure security and

stability. The area of a president to rule

Yemen is not as important as

establishing a democratic federal

system to put an end to centralization

of governance and make the real power

stem from the lower base (the ruled)

and not to be imposed from the higher

post (the ruler). In my opinion, this is

the fundamental solution. 

Q. How do you predict Yemen’s

future?

A. If the current regime remains to

spread corruption, oppress people and

help increase poverty, unemployment

and suffering among the majority of

citizens, a terrible volcano will break

out. This volcano is destined to break

out unless change takes place. It will

swallow everything in its way and

drive Yemen to a tragic situation worse

than that experienced in Somalia for

several years. And any expected

anarchy will be too difficult to settle. 

Q. Will you run for president even if

the elections are not fair and free?

A. I will never run for president in

elections having no minimum integrity,

freedom and transparency. Why should

I take part in a ballot subjected to vote

fraud? I will not take part in the

elections so that I don’t give legitimacy

to something lacks it.

VIENNA, April 28 - The

International Press Institute (IPI)

strongly condemned the ongoing cam-

paign of harassment and intimidation

against two journalists in Yemen,

namely Abed Al-Mahthari, editor-in-

chief of the independent weekly Al

Deyar and Jamal Amer, editor-in-chief

of Al Wasat. 

According to IPI statement pub-

lished in its website, Abed Al-Mahthari

remains in hiding after escaping an

attack by armed assailants on 19 April.

Since 2004, Al-Mahthari has been

investigating and reporting on alleged

arms trafficking in northern Yemen

near the Saudi Arabia border. In May

of 2004, after receiving two death

threats, Al-Mahthari was forced to tem-

per his

reporting but has since renewed his

investigations.

In recent weeks, Al-Mahthari has

reported on alleged corruption of secu-

rity forces and cooperation with arms

dealers, the threats against him are

thought to be in connection with these

reports. On the evening of 19 April, Al-

Mahthari received a call from an

unidentified source warning that he

would be killed that night.

Al-Mahthari averted the attack by

having a friend drive his car away from

his family home. The car was followed

by two men, driving a military style

vehicle with a private license plate. The

assailants followed the driver of Al-

Mahthari's car to his home, where they

smashed down the driver's front door. 

They then looked for Al-Mahthari at

the Al Thawra publishing house. When

the assailants were unable to find him

they returned to Al-Mahthari's car, took

several items from within it and then

smashed it with weapons they had been

carrying.

Although the assailants were identi-

fied by several witnesses who saw

them attack the vehicle, the two have

not been arrested and Al-Mahthari

remains in hiding.

A campaign of intimidation is also

being waged against Jamal Amer. Al

Wasat released a statement on 26 April

voicing concern that Amer's move-

ments and activities have been closely

observed since his August kidnapping.

On 23 August 2005 Amer was kid-

napped by armed assailants who threat-

ened to kill him if his newspaper con-

tinued to publish articles about corrup-

tion and abuse of power in the govern-

ment. 

The 26 April Al Wasat statement was

released shortly after a group of 

individuals, led by a political securi-

ty officer, visited the street of Amer's

family home, inquiring about his apart-

ment building, the license plate number

of his vehicle and the names of his chil-

dren's school. 

Amer, who is currently in the United

States as part of the International

Visitors Program has become the vic-

tim of a smear campaign attempting to

discredit him and the critical informa-

tion reported by his newspaper. 

Articles published this week in state-

controlled publications have accused

Amer of being connected to Israel's

intelligence organization, of acting as

an "agent of the West" and of working

to "meet the needs of the imperialist

opposition forces abroad."

Commenting on the action being

taken against Al-Mahthari and Amer,

IPI Director Johann P. Fritz said  "The

targeting of these two editors paints a

disturbing picture of the varied meth-

ods being used to silence critical voic-

es in the Yemeni press." 

"The increase in both direct and indi-

rect attacks on independent journalists

is cause for serious concern, particular-

ly since many of the attacks carried out

in recent months have taken place with

complete impunity."  

"If the Yemeni press is to be able to

carry out its important watchdog role,

journalists must be free to carry out

their work without fear of intimidation

and harassment," Fritz added.
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� Performance-Based curriculum for 5 years of age through secondary school

� Personalized education/small class sizes run by highly qualified & experienced teachers

� Over 40 computers available for student use, and computer instruction for all ages

� Extensive after school activity program involving music, art, craft, drama, & sports

� Advanced Placement (AP) college level courses available for qualified students

� Graduates attend American, Canadian, European, and Middle Eastern universities

� Specific age appropriate experiences for 2, 3 and 4 year olds

� Attractive premises near the French Embassy including a garden and play area

� Certified experienced British teacher assisted by paraprofessionals

� School hours are from 7:55 a.m. to 12:00 noon (Saturday through Wednesday)

� Arabic program from 12:00 noon – 2:30 p.m.
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Bus service available.
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Al-Hakimi to YT: 

“Ballot is the only option to
change the current situation”

IPI Condemns Harassment

and Intimidation of 

Yemeni Journalists

Jamal Amer.Abed Al-Mahthari

AAbdullah Sallam Al-Hakimi is one of the Yemeni opposition

leaders residing in Egypt, and one of the prominent

personalities in Yemen politics. He has a proposal for ideal

governance, which he shared with the Yemen Times through

an interview with him in his residence in Cairo. Some

people support Al-Hikimi and his proposal while others

oppose him for the same reason. Al-Hikimi was

Interviewed by: Mohammed bin Sallam.

As no minimum guarantees

to ensure fair, free and

transparent elections are

available, it is a waste of

time and effort to take part

in the ballot

Unless the upcoming

presidential elections

change the current regime,

the time period for change

to take place will be long.

Federalism is no threat to

the national unity, in fact it

helps enhance and

strengthen unity.

I will never run for

president in elections

having no minimum

integrity, freedom and

transparency.
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With the cooperation of UNFPA, the Population Education Project (PEP) has conducted at

Radfan district in Lahjj governorate from 16 to 18 April, 2006 a further enlightenment activity

reproductive health, family planning, HIV/AIDS, STDS, gender issues and the role of population

education in raising awareness towards population issues.

52 participants, 21 females and 31 males who represent districts education offices, school

administration, some teachers and school health and school activities supervisors from eight

districts (Radfan, Al-Had, Yafae, Al-Meflehi, Halimeen, Yahr, Habeel Jabr and Al-Melah) have

attended the workshop.

Mr. Hans Obdeijn, UNFPA representative, Dr. Afrah Thabet, the project supervisor, the

secretary general of the local council at Radfan district and the Dean of Faculty of Education of

Radfan district have attended the closing session.

The enlightenment workshop aimed at:

-  Raising awareness of the participants towards the different mentioned topics.

- Encouraging the participants to help students implement peer education and participate in

awareness raising activities within their communities.

Dr. Welaya Abdo Qaid

Population Education Project Coordinator

Enlightenment Field Workshop
Carried out by Population

Education Project (YEM/02/PO5)



By: William Harris

II
f there are two pin-points to

locate the summer season in the

US, they are the Fourth of July,

the origins of which we know

since school days, and Labor

Day about which we seem to know

almost nothing. My first surprise with

the books this rainy morning is that in

England “Labour Day” is still the First

of May, celebrating along with most of

the world this May day of celebration.

On the one hand this is the day set aside

by the Second Socialist International in

l889 to commemorate Labor, and is

retained as such by all former

Communist countries and most social-

ist states as well. But in England this

was superimposed on an ancient May

Day which can be traced back to

Roman times when the springtime hol-

iday of Flora ranged from April 28 to

May 3. If March First was the start of

the Roman year and the day to begin

planting, then May First was the time of

the blossoms which indicated that

everything had been done right, a trib-

ute to the agricultural labor of the past

two months. This is suspiciously near to

modern Easter, at April 23 in the year

2000, formerly a lunar computation and

it may have come from India and Egypt

the same date as May Day. May Day in

England may have a double root after

all.

Labor Day in the United States,

Canada and Australia is quite different,

tracing its origins back to the “Noble

Order of the Knights of Labor in

America,” an organization which was

founded in Philadelphia on

Thanksgiving Day l869 through the

efforts of Uriah S. Stephens and six

associates, all garment cutters. This was

started as a trade union but soon

changed into a broad spectrum social

and philanthropic organization under

the guidance of Stephens who was him-

self a Mason and fostered a Mason-like

direction. A secret ritual was initiated,

of which no copy has been was found in

writing, a first local assembly was

called in l773 and that same year a sec-

ond assembly of ship carpenters and

caulkers employed in Cramp’s shipyard

in Philadelphia was called. From that

point membership grew, a new consti-

tution was adopted in l882 even admit-

ting women members, with a member-

ship of near a million workers in the

mid l880’s. This was the high-water

mark, by l900 other Unions were in

place and the Knights had shrunk to

only 130,000.

It was probably the two parades of

the Knights in New York City in l882

and l884, when membership was at its

peak, that spurred Colorado in l887 to

designate the first Monday in

September a legal holiday, a date which

Congress approved in l894, while in

l909 it was approved in all states except

North Dakota and Arizona, although in

Louisiana it was observed only in New

Orleans parish, and in Maryland,

Wyoming and New Mexico it could be

proclaimed annually by the governor if

so wished. Slowly Labor Day became a

national holiday, a long weekend of

end-summer festivities, with little more

than a token tip of the hat to “Labor.”

As this last century ended, Unionism

with its long and hard-won history in

the fight for acceptable working condi-

tions, pay and benefits, was on the

decline. A thriving US economy which

believes that big business and capital

power are the surest advisors in the run-

ning of the country, has largely

bypassed the massed force of the once-

powerful unions. Might it not be suit-

able for us to pause today to think how

far the old union activities have brought

us in improving the life of the common

man? And we might think soberly for a

minute about Labor Day as a memorial

to the vanished men and women of the

l9th century who gave us the economic

base our working men and women

enjoy. This is a time to visit distant fam-

ily, to take vacation trips to resorts, to

spend money freely and fully enjoy the

prized days of this grand holiday week-

end.

Source: ancienthistory.about.com
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By: Mohammed Al-Jabri

binjabr@gmail.com

LL
ate in the afternoon,

Mohammed Hasan Al-

Fatemi went to his farm

to do his usual work.

There he met a few

friends, including his cousin Ahmed.

They all decided to sit under an acacia

tree near the farm to enjoy the weath-

er’s tranquility.

Laying aside their arms and sitting

on the comfortable, verdant ground,

the friends talked to one another until

a car suddenly appeared. It was 5 p.m.

and silence dominated the scene. It

turned out to be the car of Sheikh

Ahmed Mohammed Al-Fatemi,

accompanied by armed men.

The evil hour approached as

Mohammed Hamoud and his brother

Abdulrab got out of the car and imme-

diately opened fire on Al-Fatemi. The

two sides exchanged fire, resulting in

a horrifying scene. Al-Fatemi was shot

by four bullets in his chest and chin,

while Mohammed Hamoud was

injured slightly by one shot. Abdulrab

was injured badly and Ahmed’s father

was killed by random fire, as he just

observed the fighting.

Abdulrab died on his way to the

hospital. His life could have been

saved if the car that carried him had

not broken down on the way to the

hospital. Al-Fatemi was brought to Al-

Thawra Hospital’s intensive care

department in Sana’a, undergoing sev-

eral operations and remaining there

more than a month.

Exploiting Al-Fatemi’s hospital

stay, Dhamar’s public prosecutor man-

aged to direct the case against him.

Based on this, the case was referred to

the Western Court headed by Judge

Abdul Wasei Al-Mujahed, while Al-

Fatemi, his father and his two broth-

ers, Shajei and Ali, were sent to

prison. They remained there a year,

during which no one followed up their

case.

Four witnesses testified

about the crime in Al-Fatemi’s

absence. Al-Fatemi still main-

tains that he did not kill

Abdulrab; rather, his own

brother killed him. “I saw

Mohammed Hamoud shoot

Abdulrab while we were

exchanging fire,” Al-Fatemi

stated.

At this point, Al-Fatemi was

engaged in another case with

Judge Al-Mujahed. The Supreme

Court asked Al-Mujahed to attend to

looking into the case, but he refused.

Instead, he sentenced Al-Fatemi to

death, but the judgment was appealed.

The trial continued in the Appeals

Court, with Judges Al-Shami and Al-

Quhali canceling his death sentence

and issuing another sentence stipulat-

ing that Al-Fatemi must pay blood

money to Abdulrab’s family. Upon

learning this, the head of the Appeals

Court concealed the new sentence, but

the two judges sent a copy of it to the

court’s Penal Unit.

The Appeals Court Penal Unit

approved the death sentence, which

was sent to the Supreme Court. The

Supreme Court upheld the death sen-

tence based on the witnesses’ testimo-

ny.

On May 3, 2004, the attorney gener-

al sent the general case report to

President Ali Abdullah Saleh to

approve the death sentence. Two

months later, Saleh approved the death

sentence, in light of which the attorney

general ordered the head of Appeals

Prosecution to complete the proce-

dures to fulfill the death penalty.

In December 2004, the four wit-

nesses attended Western Court and

confessed that their testimony was

false. They were: Musleh Al-Okbi, Ali

Ammari, Mohammed Asker and Fuad

Al-Fatemi. Western Court Judge

Abdullah Al-Jurmouzi issued official

documents that their testimony was

false and issued an order to stop ful-

filling the death sentence.

The case then was referred to the

Supreme Court and then the attorney

general to look into the falsehood of

the witnesses’ testimony. The attorney

general ordered the head of Public

Prosecution to investigate the witness-

es, but the death sentence again was

approved without conducting a trial of

the witnesses.

Al-Fatemi is a 27-year-old farmer,

married with three sons and a daugh-

ter. He received basic education in

Dhamar governorate’s Bait Al-Fatemi

village. He previously had some prob-

lems with Abdulrab’s family over

some village lands.

In 1997, Dhamar governorate witnessed a
terrifying murder in which two men were
killed. Mohammed Hasan Al-Fatemi is accused
of killing Abdulrab Hamoud, which Al-Fatemi
denies. Below is the story of how the incident
occurred, as narrated by his brother Shajei Al-
Fatemi and some case documents.

Al-Fatemi: Please save my life

Letter of appeal

To: President Ali Abdullah Saleh
Amnesty International
The Ministry of Human Rights
Human Rights and Defending
Freedoms organization (HOOD)

I am appealing to all of you to look
into my case. I have been sentenced
to death, although I am not guilty. I
will be placed before the firing squad
at any moment. I have lost hope in
my case, so I now put my hope in
you to save my life. I am sure I did
not kill Abdulrab. I am oppressed, so
please do not disappoint me.

The oppressed,
Mohammed Hasan Al-Fatemi

By: Yasser Al-Mayasi

OO
fficial reports and statis-

tics recently issued by

the ministry of interior

about crime in Yemen

for year 2005 revealed

that the number of committed crimes

was 936 cases. The report classified the

crimes into three categories: widely

spread crimes, average spread and lim-

ited spread crimes.

The crimes’ rate also varies in num-

ber from one governorate to another.

Ibb governorate came first in willful

murder crimes, scoring 101 cases. The

Capital secretariat came next with 96

registered cases. There were 94 cases

in Amran, 85 in Dhamar and 77 cases

in Taiz. The rest of the 76 cases were

distributed among the other gover-

norates. 

Also, the report confirmed that car

robbery cases were 624 around the

republic. There were 268 arson cases

committed in 18 governorates.  One

hundred and three fraud cases were

reported in 18 governorates.

The statistics showed that currency

forgery crimes were 107 in 15 gover-

norates, of which the Capital secretari-

at came first followed by Saada and

Taiz. 

According to the report, willful mur-

der and burglary were the most wide-

spread and common crimes during the

past year. They were followed by

attempted murder, intentional assault,

damaging private properties and car

and trading stores’ theft occurring in 20

governorates. Coming third was the act

of stealing private car contents and

resisting authorities.  Arson, highway

robbery and drinking alcohol was the

forth most wide spread crime regis-

tered in 18 governorates. 

Simultaneously, an economic report

recently issued by the Ministry of

Planning and International

Cooperation, considered poverty as a

greatest challenge to development. It

warned that crime rate would rise in

Yemen due to increasing poverty,

unemployment rates and expense of

living. The report considered unem-

ployment as a serious ongoing eco-

nomic problem rising from 11.9% in

2000, to 16.3% in 2005 of the total

population. These problems are con-

centrated in the age groups of 15-19

and 20-24.

The report warned of the negative

impacts of unemployment, which are

evident in the continuation of decline

of living standards, the failure of fami-

lies to avail sufficient food and appro-

priate medical treatment. This is in turn

increases the peoples’ vulnerability to

diseases and epidemics. Many families

due to their economic need opt to send-

ing their children out of school and into

the labor market. By that, aggravating

unemployment and increasing crime

risk especially theft and

murder.

The mentioned report of

the Ministry of interior

depended on the security

records provided by authori-

ties around the republic.

However, there are a number

of murder cases, robbery and

burglary that are not report-

ed to the security. These

crimes are often resolved by

the sheikhs or through arbi-

tration especially in the

remote areas. Generally, the

crimes that are not reported

to the security are not inten-

tional and are often caused

by mistakes. Honor crimes

are also not reported to secu-

rity because they are a blem-

ish according to Yemeni

society culture and tradi-

tions. Many social experts

warn of spread of such

crimes especially as law is

not enforced and that eco-

nomic deterioration which is

the cause of most of the

crimes is not addressed. 

Murder crimes the highest
in 2005, security reports

The ministry of Interior issued its official crime-

related report on the 22nd of April. The report

mentions statistics of the crimes committed in 2005. 

Labor Day’s origins

ARCHIVE PHOTO
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nder the patronage
of Captain Abdul-
Khaleq Al-Qadi,
Chairman of
Yemenia, Yemenia
Airways held a
meeting for the com-

pany’s officials and employees on
Thursday at Movenpick Hotel, Sana’a.
The meeting aimed to make the situation
of Yemenia clear for all, in an effort to
cope with the recent changes and stand
united in front of the challenges they face
regarding the development of world carri-
ers and flights. 

During the meeting, Cap. Al-Qadi
called on the company’s officials and
employees to enhance their efforts and
unite their abilities and skills to work
hand in hand for the sake of achieving the
company’s strategic development plan.  

“Today we are looking at the cur-
rent situation of the company. We would
inform you about what the company is
doing at present and what the strategic
long-term and short-term plans are,”
Capt.Al-Qadi addressed the attendants. 

Al-Qadi stressed on the future of
Yemenia Airways and the position it
would occupy among competing air carri-
ers worldwide. “What is the future of
Yemenia and what is its place among
competing air carriers? What is its place
in the midst of commercial rivalry? What
is its place in the midst of high rise of fuel
and other challenges? Therefore, Yemenia

has to have a cooperative, joint   vision
towards future, in an effort to enhancing
our technical abilities to further make our
national company step forward and move
towards a better future that exceeds time
in a profitable, commercial competition,”
Al-Qadi said. 

Regarding Yemenia’s current posi-

tion, Al-Qadi made it clear
that Yemenia used to work
in an environment that
lacked rivalry. That was an
advantage for Yemenia,
and during that period
Yemenia did not think of
extending its services and
air fleet to stand before the
new changes and chal-
lenges. But it had to have a
place among other world
carriers and compete with
them, especially to ensure
a better bright future for
the company. 

“Over the past few
years, we have adopted
new polices of develop-
ment, because the world of
flights is a world of rival-
ry, where emotions and
complements have no
place. If we could not
compete in this world,
then Yemenia would not

survive. The air carriers
that depend on emotions in

their work have no place in world flights.
We have to have a basis to start from. We
have to have our own characteristic. And
this can be achieved by extending,
improving and enhancing our services
and buying new airplanes.”

“Yemenia Airways could achieve
fruitful results that are effective for join-

ing the procession of information tech-
nology development. This is evident in
making Yemenia’s air fleet more modern
and providing it with the most modern
airplanes.” Also, there are other improve-
ments regarding information technology,
such as e-ticketing, internet booking, on-
line services, etc. Yemenia has signed a
number of agreements with different air
carriers in an effort to modernize its serv-
ices and improve its status. It has signed a
multi-million dollar long-term agreement
for the supply of a wide range of airline
IT solutions from the Dubai-based IT
supplier, Mercator’s RAPID revenue
accounting solution. 

Yemenia also signed an agreement
with Dnata which is probably the largest,
most innovative, most successful supplier
of air travel services in the Middle East,
whereby Dnata will manage the services
of passengers and Sana’a Airport. It has
also signed another agreement with Cyber
Solution in order to enhance the perform-
ance of workers in different fields. 

On the other hand, Mr. Al-Qadi
thanked the efforts of Gulf Cooperative
Council (GCC) towards Yemenia. “I
greatly thank the efforts of the GCC and
directors of Gulf air carriers for accepting
Yemenia Airways in Gulf Insurance with
a 50% discount comparing with what we
used to pay for foreign Insurance compa-
nies,” Al-Qadi remarked.  

“Yemenia should have a place in the
world map and we should be proud of

With a new 

Yemenia Airways 

Captain Abdul-khaleq Al-Qadi
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ourselves. We should double our efforts.
If our capabilities are limited, then no one
will need our services. The world is going
on making development, and we will
enter a new environment. We are at the
beginning of developing our systems and
services. We have made improvements in
IT systems, and we will then enter a new
system, which is Oracle Business
Solution. We have to work as one team,

with good intention. We
should be loyal to
Yemenia of which we
should be proud. In con-
clusion, I would like to
congratulate you on the
advent of International
Labor Day,” Al-Qadi
added. 

On his part, Mr.
Chin representative of
Cyber Solution
Company delivered a
speech on this occasion,
where he gave an over-
all idea about the role of
Cyber in improving
Yemenia. He said the
future of Yemenia is
very important, and
Cyber is working on three
bases. These are: Financial
Assistance, Operational
Assistance and Functional
Profitability Assistance.

Mr. Chin made it clear
that there are challenges in front of
Yemenia, most notably Crude Oil Prices
and Yemenia’s debts. Fuel prices are now
45% higher than last year. The expected
fuel bill for Yemenia will be 35% higher
than it used to. The original debt of
Yemenia is Y.R 6.6 billion, of which Y.R.
2.4 has been paid back. While there will
be rough times for Yemenia, this year the
future of Yemenia is essentially bright.

Hard times will be addressed during
2005: 
Record fuel prices; Old debt that must be
restricted; changes to work habits and
styles; improvements in productivity.  

“People have to embrace change
not resist change. You have to look at
yourself to improve Yemenia Airlines,”
Mr. Chin addressed the attendants. 

Mr. Abdullah Lutf Al-Mutarreb,
Commercial director of Yemenia, said
everyone’s responsibility is to make
Yemenia reach the top of success. “Let’s
hope to reach the top of success, and I am
sure we can. Let’s make a vow to feel able
to make a change and reach our goals. We
have competent employees and we

should make use of them. We have no
excuse as to making improvements. We
have to have a new spirit to cope with dif-
ficulties and make success. The commer-
cial Department has a goal and that is “
the challenge year.” If we failed to
achieve this goal, then our position will
be subject to danger.” 

Al-Mutarreb, moreover, explained
in brief some of the improvements
Yemenia has made. Some of these are:
Internet Booking, Desktops, E-Ticketing,
Interline through Check-inns, Passport
Readers, Call Centers, Advanced Seat
Preservation, Air Come, FFP system,
IOSA system, BSP system and Code
Share.  

strategic policy

proves a success
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espite the
political and
ideological
differences
emerged on

the Palestinian arena for
long years, the
Palestinians, with all those
differences, remained an
embodiment of solidarity
and steadfastness in the
face of the invader who
occupied their land and
compelled many of them to
flee their homeland. 

That solidarity has been a matter of
high appreciation by their Arab brethren
and by all the honorable in the world.
Nevertheless, an amount of deformation
has recently begun to appear in the life
of the Palestinians and their country,
blemishing the image so established in
the minds. That was made after a wave
of abnormal differences falsely intro-
duced at a time the country is still
groaning under the colonization occupa-
tion. That development has made all
their Arab brethren and the honorable in
the world express fear that the ideal pic-
ture formed about the Palestinians
would be marred and also the reputation
of their courageous struggle throughout
more than half a century. 

Would it be possible that the
Palestinian weapon could be targeting
the Palestinian citizen? A question of
this sort was rather impossible to be
asked before this time and arousing it at
the present time is unacceptable and
unexpected because the ongoing battle
dictates unity and turns the arms

towards the enemy that
usurped the land. The
enemy is committing car-
nages against the legiti-
mate owners of the land
without being deterred for
this grave act by any
force, from inside or out-
side the country. Added to
that is the collapse of the
Arab front which resulted
in the enemy’s capability
to infiltrate into some
Arab capitals, which

placed themselves in service of the new
empire, namely, the United States of
America. 

The United States considers Israel as
a forward military base used for domi-
nating and controlling the region as well
as remodeling it in accordance with the
imperialist goals aimed at building the
colonialist world. 

The sons of the Arab nation in all
Arab countries and the honorable in the
world are still betting on the
Palestinians wakefulness and their
learning from the long experiences and
the example of that wise old man story.
An old wise man once summoned
together his sons and asked each one to
break his stick singly. All the sons man-
aged to do that easily. Then he asked
them to put all the sticks together and
try to break them. There and then the
sons failed to break them because the
sticks were no longer single but com-
posed one bundle. This is a piece of
wisdom the Palestinians have to
inevitable comprehend and believe in.
this wisdom is not only good for them at

this crucial circumstance, but rather use-
ful for all the Arabs and for any people
struggling for liberation and salvation
from serfdom of occupation. 

Hamas assumption of power via the
free and honest elections is an exempla-
ry start for peaceful transfer of power in
a country suffering from occupation and
killing. The duty makes it imperative on
every Palestinian people to welcome
and dedicate himself heart and soul for
supporting this beginning that paves the
way for assuming power by the way of
polling boxes instead of by force and
coups. Time is still available for the suc-
cess of this experiment. It is the time for
all of the Palestinian national action fac-
tions to protect the experiment and ren-
der support for it despite the existence
of different subordinate points of views
among them. If, God forbids, happened
the contrary and the Palestinians began
to indulge in fratricide, they will, by that
act, not only achieve the enemy’s goal
but also rather be unanimous on com-
mitting the most dangerous suicidal
operation in their history. 

The Palestinians under the organiza-
tion of Fatah are Palestinians strugglers
and so are the Palestinians under
Hamas. All of them are Palestinians
struggling for one cause. Under no any
circumstances, they should be disunited
by political affiliations or let the quest
for posts lead them to offend their long
struggler.             

Dr. Abdulaziz Al-Maqaleh is Yemen’s
prominent poet and intellectual. He is
the director of the Yemeni Center for
Studies.

II
would like here to be
specific and say the
Arab street full com-
prehends that the
Arab regimes have

their calculations and esti-
mations within the frame
of their readings of the
Arab situations and region-
al and international bal-
ances. That nevertheless
represents a healthy sign
and maturity in Arab deal-
ing with crises. However, that should not
be a justification for continued building
of the minimum level expressing a uni-
fied Arab will, that meets and stick
together behind one goal enabling the
nation to exploit its resources properly
and to build the minimum level of self-
sufficiency particularly in the area of
food. 

There is nothing that could drop that
prevalent claim on the existence of a gap
between the Arab street and the regimes
except express and clear stands live to the
challenge imposed by data of the present
dilemma that has become open to moiré
aggravation and singling out negative
reflections on the economic and social
situations of most of the nation’s peoples. 

Here I am more interested to empha-
size that I am talking of practical deci-
sions joining ranks, uniting energies,
deepening solidarity and ant invest
resources in reliance on the nation’s huge
potentials and capabilities that can affect
and influence in the course of events
through wise economic and social poli-
cies acting in harmony with the age lan-

guage and variables. I do
not think we will be capa-
ble of forcing ranks tightly
together and uniting ener-
gies before our possession
of the ability and courage to
remove the causes of inca-
pability that impedes our
movement and paralyze
our will. We have to coura-
geously admit that the real-
ity of incapability the
nation is experiencing and

reflects on the ground fearsome revivifi-
cations is a natural product for continued
insistence of some of us on putting aside
the voice of reason in reading the reality
and consider as easy the policies of run-
ning away and avoiding confrontation
and not working hard for changing this
reality to the better. 

We have also to recognize that if there
are some excuses in this state or that on
the causes of its incapability of accom-
plishing independent development up
until now or its dereliction in stabilization
of the bases of social justice and pursuit
of corruption or the inability of some of
these states to keep pace with the demo-
cratic tide, spreading rapidly in all world
countries. This is also associated with
inability to renew and develop the
thought. The thing that could not have
justifications while we are facing the
fearful challenges of globalization is that
some Arab countries feel of incapability
of wringing out their right to choose the
right path to make fore the self-incapabil-
ity for accomplishing independent devel-
opment, that could be attained via joining

into an integrated Arab system, under
claim of fear from anger of the big pow-
ers that do not accept their following that
road for reasons pertaining to their goal
and strategic intentions. 

We have to look at countries and
groupings having circumstances similar
to ours and do not possess constituents of
unity and integration available for us.
Nevertheless, those countries and group-
ings, whether in Asia or Latin America,
managed to own their independence of
decision and did not care about any
threats and maintained the road of inte-
grated development for the prosperity of
their peoples. 

Those in Asia and Latin America that
have done that have not drawn the
swords of challenge for the aim of con-
frontation but rather have built their cal-
culations out of their understanding that
the big powers proceed in their policies
from a basic rule, i.e. that of interests, as
much as others could be closer to that
rule the more the big powers respond
with the same degree of their getting
from them. 

If we want to benefit from others
experiments we have to stop the bicker-
ing and conflict among ourselves because
that does not only hinder our movement
forward but rather leads to our inability to
see and comprehend the dangers threat-
ening all of us.             

Prof. Abdulaziz Al-Tarb is an econo-
mist and a professor in Political Science.
He is the head of a number of profession-
al associations, such as the Arab Group
for Investment and Development.
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TT
he recent incident in the Qat market
where a man threw a hand grenade after
a quarrel has brought to my attention
the double curse this country suffers:
Qat and weapons. The mass addiction

to the Qat plant coupled with the spread of arms
among the local citizens causes tragic incidents
where people’s lives are in threat occasionally.
However, the fact is that Yemeni people are not
aggressive by nature, otherwise with the long
spread of arms and the short arm of law the coun-
try would be soaking in blood everyday. Yet this is
not a reason why something should not be done to
avoid such risk. The irony of this is that there had
been a number of unimplemented regulations to
control the spread of both. Moreover, many
Yemenis who speak against carrying weapons or
chewing Qat do them both. This means it is not a
matter of legislation nor is it a matter of awareness,
as much as it is a matter of enforcement of law and
providing the alternative. Yemeni youth argue that
if they do not chew Qat then their social life would
be non-existent. Others claim that they have noth-
ing better to do because of the lack of social enter-
tainment centers around the country. And obvious-
ly the reason people – mostly from tribal areas –
attribute to carrying light arms in Yemen is securi-
ty. Apparently, they believe that they would need to
defend themselves against others who in turn are
carrying weapons for the same reason and the story
goes on.

Traditionally, Yemeni people of the north pride
their men in carrying what is called a Jambia. A
Jambia is a twisted dagger hung on the waist on a
decorated belt worn as a traditional sign of man-
hood. Young boys can’t wait to get their own, but
when they do they are not preached on how to use
them as a matter of a code of conduct, this is why
the use of this weapon often goes wrong.
Unfortunately, the concept of manhood has been
degraded through the years. Today Yemeni men
wear the Jambia along with rifles or pistols without
consideration of the consequences. Only rule of
law can solve this problem in Yemen, but what if
the implementers themselves are happy with the
way things are? This is the same for Qat chewing,
as majority of Yemeni people; both men and
women chew Qat. How then, would this country
get out from this double curse? And how many
more hand grenades need to be thrown to make our
government take this issue more seriously? 

Nadia Al-Sakkaf

Editor-in-Chief

OO
ne cannot help in noticing that even in this
crazy unpredictable world that we are fac-
ing, there are patterns that the observer can-
not help but notice, which may have many
implications. In the latest polls, the Bush

Administration is facing what appears to be mounting
criticism at the performance of the Bush White House and
the concerns about the possibility of a new misguided
adventure against Iran. Whatever the case, what concerns
us here is that one cannot fail to observe that the increased
appearance of “Al-Qaida” videos and tapes have turned
out to be a useful instrument for the Bush Administration
to show that, “Hey people, we really have an enemy out
there, so don’t’ think this Administration isn’t on the
ball!” In other words, with the mounting criticism and all
the difficulties faced by the Bush White House, the latest
influx of Al-Qaida tapes seem to be a sort of bail out for
the Bush Administration. On the other hand the number
of Al-Qaida “video clips” seems to increase with the
intensity of the pressure faced by the Bush
Administration. This week, we had a special feature pres-
entation of a tape by no other than Abu Mus’ab Al-
Zirqawi, a heretofore convict who has now become a
leading member of the notorious “Al-Qaida” establish-
ment. Of course, this new entry may have backfired to
work against the notorious group, because quite frankly
most Moslems are appalled by the daily bloodletting of
innocent Iraqis by “Zirqawi” and therefore only added
strength to the assertion that Zirqawi was “appearing”
only to give credence to the neo-con contention that there
is a real terrorist danger out there and the world should
not look down upon their efforts to contain this villainous
threat. Even Moslems who support or lean towards com-
prehension of the right of the Iraqis to resist American
occupation really have no stomach for the type of resist-
ance that the Al-Qaida of Mesopotamia is adopting. Thus,
for many Moslems the latest Al-Qaida tapes of Bin
Laden, Al-Zawahiri and Al-Zirqawi are reinforcing the
contention that the role that these icons of terror are play-
ing on behalf of the self-declared guardians of the world
against terror. With the mounting vigilance against Iran,
many Moslems are wondering why Al-Qaida would be
interested in making a case for the United States in its
unilaterally declared war on the Moslem World, as they
see it. Is Al-Qaida pursuing the interests of the American
neo-cons or simply looking for a way out of their poorly
conducted campaign to distort Islam’s image as a religion
of tolerance and guardian of human rights, none of which
have entered the Al-Qaida dictionary and which have
exited from the White House dictionary ever since AIPAC
got its strong foothold in Washington?

One cannot help in noticing that most Moslems were
not impressed with the “Zirqawi” attempts to project him-
self at the vanguard of militant Islamism and his efforts to
give himself prominence as someone to be reckoned with
in the Iraqi political equation. Neither was his anti-Shiite
diatribes, which some thought to give strength to the
fomenting of a feud between Shiites and Sunni. The latter
is viewed by a majority of Moslems as being more in
service to the interests of the occupier than the defense of
Islam. 

For non-Moslems, however, the tapes might have a dif-
ferent perception, as most non-Moslems are unfamiliar
with the intricacies of Islamic political thinking and thus
will view the tapes as strengthening of the Bush
Administration’s image among the American public. 

To add strength to the contention of an apparent pattern
as described above, Ayman Al-Zawahari appears on the
eve of the UN Security Council Resolution for giving Iran
a deadline to halt its research and development work on
nuclear energy. 

Of course, it is difficult to assert for sure that there is a
direct relationship between Al-Qaida’s public relations
efforts and the US “War on Terror”, but the observer can-
not help but wonder at the dubious circumstances of the
increase in the Al-Qaida’s efforts just when the White
House needs them the most. 

To give weight to this, there is the increase in violence
as well, in more than one location, including the Sinai
explosions. Judging from the Egyptian TV stations, the
Egyptians seem to suggest that the explosions do have a
dubious nature and may be traced to Israel’s own clan-
destine nature in this intertwined complex web of events.
Egypt’s former strong stances against the Zionist state,
such as the October War victories and the tic for tat that
proceeded the 1973 Arab Israeli War can easily be revived
is what the Egyptians were saying. Such tapes are usual-
ly reserved for the Anniversary of the October War, but
this time we are getting an early show presentation that
coincided with the attacks on Sinai. Perhaps, as the
Egyptians seem to say, the Israelis are not happy with the
Egyptian’s efforts to bring the Palestinians together or
even with the appearance of Hamas leaders coming and
going to Cairo on a frequent basis.

Yemen’s
double curse

The Republic of Yemen cannot
afford to develop on the basic of
the traditional snail-pace growth
rate. We need a strong force and
zeal to address such grave issues
as excessively high population
growth rates, rapid depletion of
water resources, corruption and
mismanagement, etc.

Prof. Abdulaziz Al-Saqqaf,
(1951 - 1999)

Founder of Yemen Times
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Just a question

WWe are proud of Yemeni pro-
fessors who compose books

that are used as curricula material in
our universities. All of this “goes
tumbling down,” when we get the
notion that some of these
respectable professors do not take
into consideration that not all stu-
dents are able to buy their books.
However, when some students bor-
row these books, the professors
insist the student buy them. In the
case that the student doesn’t buy the
book, some professors will deduct
from their grades and even fail the
students. It is an immoral and inhu-

man way of dealing with students. I
hope that such treatment ends in the
near future. 

Lastly, I just want an answer to a
confusing question: If these great
people do not serve their country,
then who does?!

Asma Ali Moharram
Thamar University

With respect to those
who still are standing

IIam a teacher. Yes, I am.
Practicing this great job was

never one of my plans, as I never
found it the least interesting.
However, I am doing it now.

Writing on the board with chalk:
white, yellow, red. My eyes are red
now. Grading homework, I am suf-
fering, struggling to understand the
unusual figures that make up a sen-
tence.

Students – the victims – have
problems; nevertheless, they are
happy. I have problems as well. “I
love my job” is the most serious. I
can hear you wondering, “Why? It
cannot be. Loving a job means suc-
cessful work. It is positive.” No, no,
no!

In a country like the one in which
I am imprisoned, it’s not. In a
school like the one at which I spend
time, it’s not. In an examination hall
like the one in which I am the devil,
it’s not. Considering the ‘fine’ peo-

ple in charge of our ‘unique’ educa-
tional system, it’s not. Things are
not the way they look in this part of
the world. Definitions are upside
down. We really are producing hol-
low minds in large quantities.
Aren’t our minds hollow too? If we
don’t have, how can we give?

Those in authority, head teachers,
teachers and extremely proud par-
ents are delighted. Their ‘promis-
ing’ children have passed, they have
graduated and a bright future is
waiting for them. Society definitely
will be benefited.

“Study hard, son.”
“Why? Is cheating illegal?”
“Here? You must be joking!

Respect your teacher.”
“No, they don’t deserve it. They

are not candles anymore.”
“Go to school.”
“What for? No need. It’s a waste

of time. I’m saving up for a certifi-
cate.”

I am a teacher. I am miserable. I
am dragging myself to school. Why
am I going there? It’s confusing.
Class tomorrow – Ugh! “To prepare
or not to prepare” is the question.
Good or bad, who cares? Both are
the same.

To prove the ungrateful you
wrong is just easy, very easy. Last
year’s secondary school

examinaton result was AAA per-
cent. Expecting a better one this
year. Be happy.

Sameer Wajdi
moon_hello_sun@yahoo.com

Letter to the Editor

By:Dr. Abdulaziz

Al-Maqaleh

By:Prof. Abdulaziz
Al-Tarb

Arab economic incapability (2-2)

Palestinians: where to?
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Al-Wasat
weekly, 26
Apr 2006.

Main headlines
- Authority entrusts elections

administration with commanders of
military areas, threatens pro-regime
political parties by cutting support

- Intensified security measures
following Dhahab explosions

- Chairman of the chamber of commerce
and industry accuses Monetary Fund of
creating sedition in the country

- Al-Zindani discloses recruitment of
mad persons to assassinate him 

- Novak to “al-Wasat”: I expect the GPC
to employ the state resources to target
the opposition

- Pressures to clear decayed insecticides,
increase in smuggling goods into the
Yemeni market

- Mayor of the capital gives directives to
meet cleaning workers’ demands
Abdullah Sallam al-Hakimi writes we

consider ourselves and movements as
part and parcel of the Yemeni opposition
movement represented by parties of the
JMP, in solidarity and integration with it
although we are independents and not
partisans. Nonetheless, we believe that
the JMP has acquired with efficiency
representation of the Yemeni opposition
and consequently we consider it as a
reference of any effort and partisan and
independent opposition movement. In my
viewpoint I do not agree with some
writers opinions about the latest JMP’s
press conference, described as being
weak or confused. 

On the contrary I consider it as
successful and represented a qualitative
step in the course of the Yemeni
opposition. It has not been a fault for the
JMP not announcing its candidate for the
presidential elections up until now. It may
be the opposite. It was maybe a cleaver
measure from the tactical standpoint in
facing the political adversary, i.e. the state
that possesses money and authorities. 

The JMP would face grave challenges
regarding the process of the upcoming
presidential and local; elections,
particularly the presidential elections. As
it is its habit in sabotaging political
process, the regime plans to encourage
one of the prominent personalities in the
JMP to declare himself a presidential
nominee as competent to the one that the
JMP would select to those presidential
elections with the aim of creating a kind
of dispersing votes and large amount of
confusion in the JMP unified electoral
rank. 

The second goal is to create schism
inside the party to which that candidate is
affiliated and consequently be reflected

negatively on the JMP bloc. 

Al-Nidaa weekly,
26 Apr 2006.

Main headlines 
- Constitutional amendments draft

withdrawn from the parliament,
Meeting between the president and
Islah leaders breaks barrier of crisis
between the GPC and opposition

- Interior minister al-Aleemi meets
Yemen Journalists Syndicate council

- Deputy of the American ambassador
considers 2005 as a bad year for
journalists

- The capital’s court of appeal re-
imprisons two Syrian nationals on
charges of smuggling antiquities

- The JMP insists on illegality of
elections measures, the supreme
commission denies postponement of
presidential elections 
Mohammed Mohammed al-Maqaleh

writes that there are three big facts in the
opposition address concerning the elec-
toral process the authority should have
read their indications and political dimen-
sions very well. 

The first fact is that the parties of the
JMP would not take part in the electoral
process in its various measures and would
not recognize its results as long as the
authority insisted on keeping the present
elections commission as it is, without any
change guaranteeing its balance and
impartiality and independence. The stand
against the present management of elec-
tions proceeds from two reasons. The first
is that its constitutional and moral legiti-
macy is no longer standing especially
after confession of some of its leading
officials of committing exposed crimes of
forging led to change in results of elec-
tions in favor f the ruling party. The sec-
ond is after it has been ascertained that
because if its formation is part of the
executive power and an instrument in the
hands of the ruling party. 

The second fact is that alliance of the
JMP would remain consistent and would
not dismantle until holding the presiden-
tial elections and announcement of their
results and rather until the opposition
realizes its joint political program. Thus,
the writer maintains, the authority’s
wagering on dismantling the JMP before
the date of elections is a losing betting. 

The third fact is that the JMP that
groups the Islah, the YSP and the
Nasserite and other parties, is in fact a
strong political alliance and has a large-
scale influence and impact among the
people and the strength of the alliance
comes out of its representation of two
thirds of Yemeni voters’ voices. It is also
out of the unity of its stand and expansion
of its social and political base as well as

most of the segments of the society is
looking for a change and an authority rep-
resenting them actually. 

The writer says upon this basis a weak
authority gong alone in forged elections
means madness and going to a point of no
return. 

A l - W a h d a w i
weekly, organ of
the Nasserite
U n i o n i s t
Organization, 25
Apr 2006. 

Main headlines
- The ruling party drives children into

elections process, manipulation in
electors records

- The president backs down from
constitutional amendments 

- The JMP expresses its regret for non-
seriousness of the GPC leadership in
reaching positive results of the
dialogue

- Presidential candidate Abdulrahman
al-Hamdi:
Members of the military establishment
will not hesitate in contributing to
change 

- Thirteen persons imprisoned on
accusation of planning for attacks on
foreign interests in Sana’a

- The new Iraqi government embodies
sectarianism 

- Hundreds of poultry extinct in Al-
Saddah

- A child kidnapped in Taiz
The writer Ahmed Saeed says in an

article the ruling party, with all the pow-
ers it owns on instruments of winning the
elections, will not be able to go alone to
attain the coming constitutional due in
isolation from completion of the  political
equation of  authority and opposition. It is
a fact that should not be set aside or
exceeded otherwise the equation will be
lost and there would be a return to trench-
es of totalitarianism the people have got
rid of after great suffering and sacrifices.

The volume of hindrance and abortion
attempts against the dialogue between the
president of the republic and the JMP last
week indicates that there are some in the
ruling party leadership having interest in
fabricating crises to impede any progress
for laying correct bases for the democrat-
ic course. 

Stopping dialogue at this timing has its
dangerous implications. They are the pre-
occupation of the public opinion with
political and media bickering to cover
scandals of violations of the law in the
process of registration and squandering
time in a manner the political forces will
not find an opportunity for achieving a
joint action serving the democratic equa-
tion and the homeland and consequently
protecting the state and its political direc-
tions. There is no decisive way for sur-
mounting the difficulties blocking sound-

ness of the procedures of the coming elec-
tions other than dialogue and guarantees
of its success that all parties of the politi-
cal system would agree upon.

Al-Mithaq weekly,
organ of the
General People’s
Congress (GPC),
25 Apr 2006. 

Main headlines
- Receiving a French delegation and

representative for the Jewish sect in
Amran, The president: Poverty a
fertile environment for terror and
extremism growth, Yemen’s Jews
receive all rights of citizenship as
guaranteed by the constitution 

- Crisis inside the Islah party, al-Zindani
and al-Tharihi consider “regionalism”
of Qahtan as political tampering and
demagogy 

- Islah warns the YSP against ignoring
of treatment of the secessionist war
sequels

- Parties of the JMP announce
willingness of nominating president
Ali Abdullah Saleh to presidential
elections, The GPC calls them to join
it in convincing the president to back
down from non-nomination 
The newspaper’s editorial puts a ques-

tion about the party that led the dialogue
to a deadlock and whether the dialogue
merely a means for passing and wasting
of time. 

The editorial goes on that as for us in
the GPC (the ruling party) the door of dia-
logue has remained open and it is not part
of our culture and behavior to use dia-
logue for reaching a deadlock. The edito-
rial goes on to mention that dialogue is a
respectable value and serious practice.
Among the bases that must be related to
dialogue is respect of the other and agree-
ment on issues and subjects of dialogue
provided the issues must express realistic
needs and to be built on what is existing
and its development and not for its demo-

lition. 
It mentions that some number of lead-

erships in the JMP wail on the dialogue
and allege that the GPC was the cause in
failure of the dialogue through the past
period and they know well that they do
not excel in dialogue but in the field of
political deals and gaining personal inter-

ests or ministerial posts. They had been
used to in the past that what they could
not obtain in elections they will have via
exceptional deals and agreements. This is
a means that should not continue as the
democratic experiment has become root-
ed and the citizen has become the owner
of decision and will in choosing his

By: Mohammed KhidhrBy: Mohammed Khidhr
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ast week, the Interior
Minister Rashad al-Alimi
promised to hold the perpe-
trators of the attacks against
journalists accountable. He

said he ordered the arrest of the well-
known tribal Sheikh Faris Mana’a for his
intimidations and threats against Abed
al-Mahthari. During his meetings with
the Yemeni Journalists Syndicate board
members, al-Alimi announced that his
men are still investigating into the
attacks journalists have been going
through, promising the prosecution of
the people behind such assaults. He
acknowledged that the hostile attitude
towards the journalists is because of the
lack of a democratic culture among the
people including security recruits. The
man also promised to appoint a
spokesman and establish an information
center to provide the media professionals
with the information they need. 

This is really a great change and ini-
tiative which we all should thank the
minister for. However, we need to see
concrete results that demonstrate this
new trend of al-Alimi, who is also the
deputy prime minister, reflecting an atti-
tude of the whole government.

I know that journalists can face intim-
idations from different people but the
most important sources of that have been
the security personnel. They have a hos-
tile attitude towards journalists, envisag-
ing them, mainly foreign media
reporters, as “enemies of the country and
agents who care only about their person-
al benefits.” Of course, the list of accu-
sations can go on. A number of journal-
ists have been beaten up or harassed in
different ways, even while covering
ordinary events like protests or sit-ins of
government employees. 

I know sometimes it is not attitude of
the government but we can not afford to
continue to pay the price of the igno-
rance and lack of elegance of the securi-
ty men. As the interior ministry gives its
staff lectures on the love of the country,
its leaders …etc, it can also give lectures
on how to deal with journalists in a
respectable manner; they should be edu-
cated that journalists are not the enemies
of the country and that they are doing
their job which should be respected and
facilitated. Journalists are not trouble-
makers as they are perceived; they do
serve the country and have to afflict the
comfortable and comfort the afflicted;
they have to report on the wrongdoings
of the officials and hold them account-
able.  This is the job of journalists in a
democracy.

With regards to the important issue of
access to information, the interior minis-
ter, who is very respectable, polite and
civilized as a person, himself has been
exercising a great monopoly over infor-
mation sources relating to security and
he used to speak only to some state-run

media, making us as foreign media cor-
respondents hover like hungry wolves,
forced to quote the 26 September week-
ly of the army for our reports related to
security issues. Opening an information
center will mean a breakthrough in the
relationship between the journalists and
his ministry. We do not want anything
from him, but information when it is
needed. It is our right to ask officials give
us the information we need. It is also the
right of the people to be informed.
Access to information is the headache of
journalists not only with the interior min-
istry but also with almost all the govern-
ment officials. And if this initiative
comes from the interior, the others will
certainly follow suit. We need official
spokesmen who can provide information
to the people just like in any democratic
society based on transparency and open-
ness.

I understand that the Yemen govern-
ment has been facing hard times and
harsh criticism from the donors and
international human rights and media
organizations; they organizations have
been also urging the government to at
least show evidence it is seriously inves-
tigating violence against media profes-
sionals. They have clearly put the
improvement of the media situation as a
parameter or condition for the flow of
their donations. All sorts of dirty trickery
and cloning of newspapers should be
stopped. 

Hey guys! You always claim journal-
ists are distorting the image of the coun-
try and producing false reports on the
country. We are not; we are not tribes-
men blackmailing you by kidnapping;
we do just need the correct information
from you and let us work freely. Again,
we are not the ones who are damaging
the country’s reputation. It is you and
your misbehavior that is damaging the
country. We have been, rather, a source
of pride for the country, being praised by
the international community; it is for the
remarkable scope of press freedom we
have had that the international communi-
ty had committed itself to support
Yemen and its democratization drive.
The backsliding steps we have made
have invited the uproar of the world
community which has started setting
conditions for its support. 

Any how, we do not care about who is
behind the announced change in the atti-
tude towards the media as much as about
the concrete results of the announcement
of al-Alimi. Yemen government commit-
ted itself to the respect and protection of
media freedom. We need to see concrete
results demonstrating this commitment.
Let us keep our fingers crossed in the
hope of a genuine change and best wish-
es to journalists all over the world on the
cassation of the International Press
Freedom Day which meets the third of
May.

By: Gary Becker

TT
he US is often criticized for
its refusal to abolish capital
punishment. Many now
claim that abolition of capi-
tal punishment is a precondi-

tion of a civilized criminal-law system.
Nobel laureate Gary Becker disagrees.

European governments are adamantly
opposed to capital punishment – the
European Union bans it outright – and
some Europeans consider its use in the
United States barbaric. Indeed, many
European intellectuals argue that not just
capital punishment, but punishment in
general, does not deter criminals.

But, whereas Europeans, with crime
rates well below American rates for the
past half-century, could long afford to be
relatively “soft” on most crimes, they
have seen their crime rates increase
sharply during the past twenty years. By
contrast, American rates have fallen, in
part because of greater use of punish-
ment.

This includes capital punishment. I
support executing some people convict-
ed of murder because – and only because
– I believe that it deters other murders. If
I did not believe that, I would oppose
capital punishment, because revenge and
other possible motives should not be a
basis for public policy.

Serious empirical research on capital
punishment in the US began with a pio-
neering study by Isaac Ehrlich, pub-
lished in 1975 in the American
Economic Review. Some subsequent
studies have sometimes found a much
weaker deterrent effect, while others
have found a much stronger effect. The
available data are quite limited, however,
so one should not base any conclusions

solely on the econometric evidence.
Of course, public policy on any pun-

ishment cannot wait until the evidence is
perfect. But, even with the limited quan-
titative evidence available, there are
good reasons to believe that capital pun-
ishment deters.

Most people, and murderers in partic-
ular, fear death, especially when it fol-
lows swiftly and with considerable cer-
tainty following the commission of a
murder. As David Hume put it in dis-
cussing suicide, “no man ever threw
away life, while it was worth living. For
such is our natural horror of death…”
Likewise, Schopenhauer believed that
“as soon as the terrors of life reach a
point at which they outweigh the terrors
of death, a man will put an end to his life.
But the terrors of death offer consider-
able resistance…”

Opponents of capital punishment fre-
quently proclaim that the state has no
moral right to take anyone’s life, includ-
ing that of the most reprehensible mur-
derer. Yet that is absolutely the wrong
conclusion for anyone who believes that
capital punishment deters.

To see why, suppose that for each
murderer executed (instead of, say,
receiving life imprisonment), the num-
ber of murders is reduced by three,
which is a much lower number than
Ehrlich’s and some other estimates of the
deterrent effect. This implies that for
each murderer not executed, three inno-
cent victims would die. In fact, the gov-
ernment would indirectly be “taking”
many lives if it did not use capital pun-
ishment.

Saving three innocent lives for every
person executed seems like a very attrac-
tive trade-off, and even two lives saved
per execution seems like a persuasive

benefit-cost ratio for capital punishment.
Admittedly, however, the argument in
favor of capital punishment becomes
less clear-cut as the number of lives
saved per execution falls. But, even if
only one life were saved per execution,
the tradeoff might still be desirable if the
life saved is much better than the life
taken, which would usually be the case.

Many people object to comparing the
quality of the life spared and the life
taken. Yet I do not see how to avoid such
a comparison. Consider a career criminal
who robs and kills a victim who led a
decent life and left several children and a
spouse behind. Suppose it would be pos-
sible to save the life of an innocent vic-
tim by executing such a criminal. To me
it is obvious that saving such a victim’s
life must count for more than taking the
criminal’s life. Obviously, not all cases
are so unambiguous, but a comparison of
the qualities of individual lives must be
part of any reasonable social policy.

This helps explain why capital punish-
ment should be used only for murders,
and not for lesser crimes. When the
tradeoff is between taking lives and, say,
reducing property theft, the case for
milder punishments is far stronger.
Although severe assaults, including
some gruesome rapes, may approach
some murders in severity, and might
conceivably call for capital punishment,
I do not support its use in these cases.

A powerful argument for reserving
capital punishment for murders is “mar-
ginal deterrence.” If assault were pun-
ished with execution, perpetrators would
have an incentive to kill their victims to
avoid discovery (which is a major reason
why the severity of punishments more
generally should be matched to the
severity of crimes).

One complication is that capital pun-
ishment may make a murderer fight
harder to avoid being captured, which
could lead to more deaths. But, while
marginal deterrence is important, I
believe the resistance of murderers to
being captured, possibly at the expense
of their own lives, is really indirect evi-
dence that criminals do fear capital pun-
ishment.

Of course, I worry about the risk of
executing the innocent. My support for
capital punishment would weaken great-
ly if the rate of killing innocent people
were as large as that claimed by many.
However, I believe that the appeal
process in the US offers enormous pro-
tection, not so much against wrongful
conviction as against wrongful execu-
tion, so that there are very few, if any,
documented cases of innocent people
being killed. And this process has been
strengthened enormously with the devel-
opment of DNA identification. 

Again, the debate about capital pun-
ishment is essentially a debate about
deterrence (which may be reduced by
lengthy appeals). I can understand that
some people are skeptical about the evi-
dence, although I believe they are wrong
about both that and the common sense of
the issue. It is very disturbing to take
someone’s life, even a murderer’s life,
but sometimes highly unpleasant actions
are necessary to prevent even worse
behavior that takes the lives of innocent
victims.

Gary S. Becker is Nobel laureate in
Economics and Professor of Economics
and Sociology at the University of
Chicago.
Copyright: Project Syndicate, 2006. 
www.project-syndicate.org
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

1. BACKGROUND INFORMATION
CALYON Corporate and Investment Bank – Yemen Branch (the Bank) is a
branch of CALYON Corporate and Investment Bank, whose head office is in
Paris, France, and is wholly owned by Crédit Agricole SA – France (CA SA).
The Bank is licensed and operates in the Republic of Yemen as a branch of a
foreign bank in terms of the Banks’ Law no. 38 of 1998.  The Bank is engaged
in commercial banking through its Head Office in Sana’a and four other branches
in Hodeidah, Aden, Taiz and Mukalla.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis, in accordance
with current International Financial Reporting Standards promulgated by the
International Accounting Standards Board, and prevailing local laws and
regulations, including rules and instructions issued by the Central Bank of
Yemen (CBY).
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with International
Financial Reporting Standards requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses.  The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgements about the carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.  Actual
results may differ from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the
estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
In order to comply with local regulations, the items listed below are not
presented in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards: 

- Loan allowances are calculated using minimum fixed percentages in
accordance with CBY circulars no. 6 of 1996 and no. 5 of 1998; 

- The allowance for general risks calculated on contingent liabilities and
commitments is included in provisions, and not in Head Office equity;

and
- The allowance for general risks calculated on performing loans is

included in allowances and provisions for credit facilities, not in Head
Office equity.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a. Translation of foreign currencies
The Bank maintains its records in Yemeni Rial.  Transactions in other currencies
are recorded during the financial year at the prevailing exchange rates at the date
of transaction.  Balances of monetary assets and liabilities in other currencies at
the end of the financial year are translated at the prevailing exchange rates on that
date.  Gains or losses resulting from translation are taken to the statement of
income.

b. Revenue recognition
Revenues are recognized on the accrual basis.  However, in order to comply with
the requirements of CBY circular no. 6 of 1996, the Bank does not accrue interest
on non-performing loans and credit facilities.  When an account is treated as non-
performing loan, all uncollected interest relating to the three months prior to
categorizing the loan as non-performing is reversed from income and transferred
to uncollected interest.  

c. Treasury bills and Central Bank of Yemen certificates of deposit
Treasury bills are presented in the balance sheet at face value less the balance of
unearned discount outstanding at the balance sheet date.
Treasury bills with repurchase obligation are presented in the balance sheet at
cost at the balance sheet date.  The related accrued interest is included in interest
receivable.
Central Bank of Yemen certificates of deposit are presented in the balance sheet
at face value at the balance sheet date.  The related accrued interest is included
in interest receivable.

d. Allowances and provisions for loans and contingent liabilities
In order to comply with CBY circulars no. 6 of 1996 and no. 5 of 1998,
allowances and provisions are made for specific loans, overdrafts and contingent
liabilities, in addition to a percentage for general risks calculated on the total of
other loans, overdrafts and contingent liabilities, after deducting balances
secured by deposits and bank guarantees issued by worthy banks.  Allowance is
determined based on periodical comprehensive reviews of the credit portfolio
and contingent liabilities.  Accordingly, allowances are provided in accordance
with the following minimum rates:

Performing loans and contingent liabilities 
(including special attention) 1%
Non-performing loans:
Substandard debts 15%
Doubtful debts 45%
Bad debts 100%

Loans are written off by debiting the allowance if procedures taken towards their
collection prove useless, or if directed by CBY examiners upon review of the
portfolio.  
Loans to customers and banks are presented in the balance sheet at amortized
cost net of uncollected interest, specific and general allowances for
uncollectibility.

e. Contingent liabilities and commitments
Contingent liabilities and commitments to which the Bank is a party are
presented off balance sheet, net of any margin held from the customers, under
“contingent liabilities and commitments”, as they do not represent actual assets
or liabilities at the balance sheet date.

f. Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of preparing the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents consist of cash on hand, cash balances with CBY other than reserve
balances, demand deposits with other banks, and investment in treasury bills that
are due within three months of the issuance date.

g. Impairment of assets
The Bank reviews the carrying amounts of the assets according to their
materiality at the balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication
of impairment.  If such indication exists, the assets’ recoverable amount is
estimated and compared with the carrying amount and any excess in the carrying
amount is charged to the statement of income.
Any increase in the value of assets is also recognized in the statement of income,
provided that the increase does not exceed the original recoverable value of the
asset before impairment.

h. Property, equipment and depreciation
Property and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any.  Depreciation is charged to the statement of income on
a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of items of property and
equipment.  The depreciation method, useful lives and residual values, if any are
reassessed annually by the bank’s management.  The estimated useful lives are
as follows:

Details Years

Computers 5
Equipment and furniture 10-50
Motor vehicles 5

Improvements and renovation expenses of the Bank’s rented branches are
amortized over the lesser of their useful lives, or the period of the lease of the
branch.

j. Taxation
Corporate tax due is calculated in accordance with the prevailing laws and
regulations in the Republic of Yemen.
A provision is provided for tax liabilities after appropriate review of tax
assessments received.  Due to the nature of Yemeni tax accounting, provision is
provided for tax liabilities relating to deferred tax.  If deferred tax assets exist,
their clearance is not usually definite in the foreseeable future.  Accordingly, such
assets are not recorded.

k. End of service benefit
End of service benefit is calculated on a basis of one month basic salary for each
completed year of service, or any parts thereof.

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND MANAGING THEIR RELATED
RISKS

4.1 Financial instruments
The Bank’s financial instruments consist of financial assets and liabilities.
Financial assets include cash, deposits with banks, treasury bills, certificates of
deposit, loans to customers, debit balances and other assets.  Financial liabilities
include customers’ deposits, due to banks, credit balances and other liabilities.
Financial instruments also include rights and obligations in the form of
contingent liabilities and commitments.
Note 3 to the financial statements includes significant accounting policies
applied for recognition and measurement of these financial instruments and their
related revenues and expenses. 

a. Fair value of financial instruments
Applying the valuation bases for the Bank’s assets and liabilities stated in the
notes to the financial statements, the fair value of recognized financial
instruments does not differ significantly from their book values at the balance
sheet date.  

b. Forward contracts
The Bank deals in forward contracts only to the extent necessary to cover its
needs for foreign currencies or its customers’ needs to meet their obligations in
foreign currencies as a result of their operations through the Bank.  All forward
contracts entered into are short term in nature.  The value at risk at balance sheet
date was not material.

4.2 Managing related risks

a. Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will
affect the value of financial instruments.  The Bank performs a number of
procedures to limit the effect of such risk to the minimal level such as:

• Correlating interest rates on borrowing with interest rates on lending,
• Considering the discount rates for different currencies when

determining interest rates, and
• Controlling the matching of maturity dates of financial assets and

liabilities.

Notes 29 and 30 to the financial statements state the maturity dates of the Bank’s
financial assets and liabilities and their related average interest rates applied by
the Bank during the year respectively.

b. Credit risk
Loans and credit facilities to customers and banks, current accounts and deposits
with banks and rights and obligations from others are considered as financial
assets exposed to credit risk.  Credit risk represents the inability of these parties
to meet their obligations when they fall due.  In order to comply with CBY
circular no. 10 of 1997 regarding credit risk exposure, the Bank adheres to
certain minimum standards in order to properly manage its credit risk, including:

• Preparing credit studies of customers and banks before dealing with
them and determining the related credit risk rates,

• Obtaining sufficient collateral to minimize credit risk exposure which
may result from financial problems of customers or banks,

• Follow up and periodical review of customers and banks in order to
evaluate their financial positions, credit rating and the required
provision for non-performing loans, and

• Distributing the credit portfolio and balances with banks over
diversified sectors to minimize concentrations of credit risk.

Note 31 to the financial statements indicates the sectorial distribution of the
credit portfolio.

c. Exchange rate risk
Due to the nature of the Bank’s activity, the Bank deals in a number of foreign
currencies, hence it is exposed to exchange rate risk.  In order to minimize the
exposure to exchange rate risk, the Bank attempts to maintain balanced foreign
currencies positions, by matching assets and liabilities in compliance with CBY
instructions and the requirements of CBY circular no. 6 of 1998, which specifies
that individual net foreign currency positions should not exceed 15% of the
Bank’s capital and reserves, and that the aggregate net open position for all
foreign currencies should not exceed 25% of the Bank’s capital and reserves.
Note 32 to the financial statements indicates the significant foreign currency
positions at the balance sheet date.  The Bank has no significant exposure to
highly inflationary foreign currencies.

Calyon Corporate and Investement Bank, Sana’a, Republic of Yemen

Financial Statements for the year ended

December 31, 2005, and Auditor’s Report
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depress ion

a f f e c t s

roughly one

in four

people at some point in

their lives. It is a severe

and prolonged state of

mind in which normal

sadness grows into a

painful state of

hopelessness, listlessness,

lack of motivation, and fatigue. But,

however well defined, clinical

depression is many things to many

people, varying from mild to severe.

Mild depression can result in

brooding on negative aspects of self

or others, feeling resentful, irritable

or angry much of the time, feeling

sorry for oneself, and needing

constant reassurance from someone.

It can also result in various physical

complaints that do not seem to be

caused by any physical illness.

As depression worsens, feelings of

extreme sadness and hopelessness

combine with low self-esteem, guilt,

memory loss, and concentration

difficulties to bring about a severely

painful state of mind. To make things

worse, there may be a change in

basic bodily functions. The usual

daily rhythms seem to go wrong:

can’t sleep, or sleep too much, can’t

eat, or eat too much. Enthusiasm for

what are usually enjoyable activities

fades. Sometimes, there is even a

feeling that life is not worth living

and that one would be better off

dead.

The most commonly used

treatment for major depression is

antidepressant medication. It is

relatively cheap, and it is easy for

family practitioners, who treat the

majority of depressed

people, to prescribe.

However, when the

episode has passed,

and medication

ceases, depression

tends to return, and at

least 50% of those

who experienced an

initial episode of

depression find that

depression comes

back, despite appearing to have

made a full recovery.

After a second or third episode,

the risk of recurrence rises to 80-

90%. Early onset depression (before

20 years of age) is particularly

associated with a significantly

higher risk of relapse and recurrence.

For those who have been suicidal in

the past, any depressed mood is

likely to be accompanied by a return

of suicidal thinking.

The problem with viewing

antidepressants as the main method

for preventing recurrence is that

many people do not want to stay on

medication for indefinite periods,

and when the medication stops, the

risk of becoming depressed again

returns. Finding new ways of helping

people stay well after depression

demands an understanding of why

depression keeps returning.

During a period of crisis in which

someone becomes depressed and

suicidal, an association is learned

between the various symptoms (low

mood, physical pain, suicidal

tendencies, and so on). This means

that when the negative mood returns,

for any reason, it will tend to trigger

all the other symptoms – a process

called “cognitive reactivity”).

The discovery that the link

between negative moods and

negative thoughts remains ready to

be reactivated even when people feel

well is hugely important: it means

that preventing future crises depends

on learning how to keep mild upsets

from spiraling out of control.

Research has shown that combining

the ancient practice of meditation

with modern psychotherapies can

accomplish this.

Based on Jon Kabat Zinn’s Stress

Reduction program at the University

of Massachusetts Medical Center,

Mindfulness-based Cognitive

Therapy (MBCT) combines modern

cognitive behavioral therapy with

meditation practices to help people

become more aware of the present

moment, including getting in touch

with moment-to-moment changes in

the mind and body (see

www.mbct.co.uk).

In weekly classes (the atmosphere

is that of a class, rather than a

therapy group), and by listening to

CD’s or tapes at home during the

week, participants learn the practice

of mindfulness meditation. The

classes also include basic education

about our moods, and several

exercises from cognitive therapy that

show the links between thinking and

feeling and how participants can best

look after themselves when a crisis

threatens to overwhelm them.

The MBCT approach helps

participants in the classes to see

more clearly the patterns of the mind

and to learn how to recognize when

their mood is starting to sink. It helps

break the normal link between

negative mood and negative

thinking. Participants develop the

capacity to allow distressing moods,

thoughts, and sensations to come and

go, without having to battle with

them.

They find that they can stay in

touch with the present moment

without having to ruminate about the

past or worry about the future. Thus,

they come to see with greater clarity

and conviction how to approach

moment-by-moment experience

skillfully, taking more pleasure in

the good things that often go

unnoticed or unappreciated while

dealing more effectively with the

difficulties encountered, whether

real or imagined.

Two controlled clinical trials have

demonstrated that MBCT can reduce

the likelihood of relapse by about

40-50% in people who have suffered

three or more previous episodes of

depression. As a result of such

findings, MBCT has now been

included in the British government’s

national guidelines for treating

recurrent major depression.

But this implies a redefinition of

treatment itself. As our

understanding of depression grows

and we see that it is a recurring

problem, the emphasis is shifting

from cure to prevention.

Mindfulness-based approaches have

already proven that they will play an

enormously important role in this.

J. M. G. Williams is Professor of

Clinical Psychology and Wellcome

Principal Research Fellow at the

University of Oxford. His books

include Cry of Pain: Understanding

Suicide and Self Harm and (with

Zindel Segal and John Teasdale)

Mindfulness-based Cognitive

Therapy for Depression: a new

approach to preventing relapse.

Copyright: Project Syndicate, 2006.

From depression to freedom

OO
ne of the

consequences

o f

technological

progress and

industrial revolution has been

the release of a large number

of chemicals into

environment. Although,

considerable research efforts

have been made into a variety

of alternative pest control

methods in recent years, use of

chemical pesticides is still the

mainstay in modern agriculture and

public health programmers. At the

same time anxiety over chemical

pollution has made the study of

hazardous effects of pesticides as one

of the principle areas of research. 

In particular organochlorine

insecticides have

been extensively

investigated and

today several of

them have been

suspended from

general application

in the USA and

other countries.

Nevertheless, it's

felt for the time

being that

pesticides are necessary evil and in

absence of any feasible substitute,

their use will continue to combat the

vast range of vectors of diseases.

With the slow development of

civilization, so man has gradually

realized the extent to which pests

harm his crops, annoy him and

transmit diseases to both human and

domestic animals. 

The use of chemical to kill pests is

not a new concept. As early as the late

16th century arsenic could be used to

kill insects and the Chinese used

arsenic sulphide as an insecticide.

The use of arsenical compounds has

continued, and during the early part

of the 20th century, large quantities of

such compounds as lead arsenate

were used to control insect pests.

Another arsenical compound Paris

green (Copper Aceto-arsenite) was

extensively applied to pool the

standing water in the tropics, in

attempts to control malaria-

transmitting mosquitoes. It was not

realized at the time how persistent

arsenical pesticides were, although it

is now known that they can persist in

soil for 40 years, and many orchard

soils still contain large amount of

these chemicals. For instance, in a

recent survey of arsenic residues in

arable soils in Canada, residues of

arsenic ranging from 11-121 PPM

were reported. Although it was

known that organochlorine were very

persistent, up till the early 1950s

there was little anxiety as to possible

long-term ecological hazards caused

by their use. There was some

evidence that large residues in soil

could be pytotoxic, small quantities

of some were reported from plant and

animal tissues and in cows' milk and

there were some instances of fish

being killed when water was sprayed

in antimalaria and other pest

campaigns, but unavoidable hazards

and of little concern. 

As pesticides pass in most cases

directly or indirectly into the

foodstuffs. For many pesticides legal

limits (tolerance doses) are imposed

regarding the residues that may be

left in the food stuffs. By tolerance

dose is meant the quantity of a

substance that may be absorbed  by

one person from his daily diet in the

course of a lifetime without coming

to any harm as far as can be judged

from present scientific knowledge.

The level at which a pesticide dose

not make damage to the biological

system is expressed as milligrams per

kilogram of body weight. In ordinary

circumstances, one hundredth part of

this dose is then prescribed as the safe

limit for human being.

Dr. Mohammed Alhifi holds a Ph.D. in

Environmental Toxicology. He is a

lecturer at Dept. of Biology, Faculty

of Education in Arhab, University of

Sana'a.

Pesticides: the necessary evil

Sadness grows into a painful state of hopelessness, listlessness.

SSome of the pesticides used today in

the modern farming, are very

poisonous. Even if used in low

concentrations of pesticides, but

their accumulation can reach a level

where health is affected. The fetus

also can not escape pesticides, a

team of American and Canadian

Scientists found pesticides and

industrial chemicals in the amniotic

fluid of fetus. Some pesticides have

the potential to cause birth defects if

the exposure to a fetus occurs at a

critical time in pregnancy. In the

recent studies we have carried out a

study to test the effect of insecticide

called as Dimethoate (commercially

marketed in the brand name of

Perfekthion) on the embryo

development during the early stages

of organogenesis using chick

embryo as a model in our

experiments. This insecticide is

classified by the WHO in the class

II (organophosphate), and it is used

dramatically in the growing of Qat

and during the cultivation of fruits

and vegetables. So lots of people

including pregnant women are

getting exposed to Dimethoate

through Qat.  Results indicated that

Dimethoate has potential to induce

serious abnormalities during the

embryo organogenesis as follow:

1-Affecting the brain shape and

size (undefined brain and

microcephaly).

2-Opening and wavy shaped

neural tube. 

3- Diffusing of the somites and  

4-Heart miss-position or

sometimes missing of the heart.   

Abnormalities such as those

mentioned above are serious since

these are the beginners of the

organs. For e.g. somites will

contribute to the development of the

vertebrae and some parts of the

skull. In addition the nephrotomal

band (a part of the somites) will

contribute to the transformation of

the kidney. So any disturbance

during this stage that somites might

be affected, will alarm with gross

abnormalities that may be induced

such as missing some parts of the

skull, neck scholiosis (carved neck),

missing of the eye (exophthalmia)

or some parts of the limbs

(phocomelia). In the same study it is

also proved that Dimethoate inhibits

the acetylecholinestrase (the

enzyme which is playing important

role in transmitting nerve impulse)

by 40% of its activity at normal

situation. Deformities in brain

development suggest the defective

cell proliferation.  Inhibition of

acetylcholine esterase (AChE)

suggests disruption of nerve

function during the embryo

development. Inhibition of AChE

might be due to the linkage of

Dimethoate with Cholinestrase

active group. This inhibition

suggests a possible damage to the

Central Nervous System (CNS) by

Dimethoate during the embryo

development. As has been reported

the accumulation of acetyle choline

in the heart and brain induce the

bradycardia and heart arrest. This

may explain the sudden death of

some youth while chewing the Qat

sprayed with insecticides (such as

Dimethoate), while they were

enjoying a healthy life before. In the

sight of the present researches, the

concern governmental institutions

should implement laws to control

entrance of pesticides to the country

and spreading of the awareness

should be made amongst farmers

and consumers in general. The

agriculture products specially fruits

and vegetables should be monitored

for examination the level of

pesticides the people are getting

exposed to.

Effect of pesticides on embryonic development

By: Dr. Mohammed Alhifi 

By: J. M. G. Williams

Chemical pesticides is still the mainstay in modern agriculture and public health programmers.
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Vacancies
A trading company requires applicants to fill the following posts:

1)  Driver
Duration: 20 months
English speaking, driving license and experience.
Part of this job beside driving is to run for errands as requested. Will have to
drive outside Sana’a (especially to Marib)

2) Secretary
Duration: 20 months
Fleucny in English written and spoken is essential
Working knowledge of MS Office (Word, Excel, Access, Power Point,
Outlook). Organize documents, answering phone calls and sending faxes.

3) Electrical Engineer
Duration: 18 months
Fleucny in English written and spoken is essential
Must hold a degree in Engineering from a local or foreign university.
Courses abroad is appreciated. Able to analyze electrical scheme and
drawings

4) Mechanical or Civil Engineer
Duration: 18 months
Fleucny in English written and spoken is essential
Must hold a degree in Engineering from a local or foreign university.
Courses abroad is appreciated. Able to analyze civil drawings and structures.

5) Contractual and financial assistant
Duratin: 18 months
English is essential
Work experience from foreign companies is highly appreciated.

Able to follow financial matters (invoicing follow up...) and contractual
matters (redaction of contractual letters in relation with the contracts)

Fax:415677
Email: smart_ye@yahoo.ca

Europe Aid/Fisheries

MCS/YE/2006/1/W

The Yemen MCS Fisheries Project intends to award

a works contract for an extension to the existing

Ministry of Fish Wealth building in the south Al-

Safiah District of Sana’a Republic of Yemen with

Financial assistance from the Asia & Latin America

(ALA) programmer of the European Communities

The tender dossier is available for inspection at: 

Yemen Fisheries MCS project, Ministry of Fish

Wealth.

Djibouti Street, Sana’a 

Po.Box 12145, Republic of Yemen.

Tel :- (01) 444156  Fax :- ( 01) 444157 PLT Mobile:-

711453300, PIU Director Mobile:- 733200207,

Email: degmfwye@v.net.ye The deadline for sub-

mission of tenders is before close business 10 May

2006.

Correction of the “Qualification  Requirement” in

UNDP Vacancy Announcement which was published in

Yemen Times on 20th April 2006:

Position: “ National Project Coordinator”

Project: “Clean Development Mechanism Project”.

Kindly read the qualifications requirement for the above position as

follows:

Qualifications:

• Possession of a Master Degree in Environmental Science/Social  

Science or equivalent and working experience in environmental

programmes/projects with at least five to seven years overall expe-

rience.

•  Good experience in government administrative structure.

Languages:

•   Good command of Arabic and English languages

Skills:
•   Computer skills.

•   Good communication skills. 

•   Excellent writing skills.

•   Excellent ability to foster involvement of relevant stakeholders.

Interested candidates are requested to visit our website at:

http://www.undp.org.ye/undp-vacancies.htm for detailed term of refer-

ence of the position and may submit their applications indicating the title

of the post applied for by mail to Human Resources Unit and response will

only be made to short listed candidates.

UNDP, P.O.Box 551 Sana’a/Fax: 448841/E-mail: (registry.ye@undp.org)

The deadline for receiving applications is Wednesday, 10 May 2006

UNDP is an equal opportunity organization and qualified female

candidates are strongly encouraged to apply.

JOB VACANCY
A beverage company, being a regional leader in the

Beverage industry, has recently opened a new office in Sanaa

and is interested in hiring the following positions for the newly

established office:

1. Personnel & Purchasing officer
2. Administrative Assistant (secretary)

Basic requirements for application are:
• Proficiency in English & Arabic

• Analytical & problem solving skills

• College graduate

• Office Management ability

• 2 years experience

Successful candidate would receive a competitive package &

would work in a dynamic atmosphere with the opportunity for

development as the company has expansion plans for the

market in the coming 3 years.

Interested applicants can fax a copy of their CV to:

01 625 660 Attn: ʻJob Vacancy - # 1/06 or # 2/06ʼ

Note: Only shot listed candidates would be contacted
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An immediate vacancy exists at the IFC Office in Sana’a for a Finance Analyst.

The applicant is expected to meet the following requirements:

• A degree in Accounting, Finance, Business, Economics.  Recognized professional

accreditation (CPA, CIMA, ACCA) will be an added advantage.

• At least 3 years of experience in corporate setting with a distinct advantage of

experience in donor-funded operations and knowledge of the World Bank procedures.

• Sound knowledge and understanding of accounting theory, concepts and principles,

financial accounting reporting, budgeting, cost allocation.

• Proven practical skills in General Ledger, Accounts Payable/Accounts Receivable,

account reconciliation, budgeting, analysis of financial data, preparation of financial

reports. 

• Advances skills in Excel and Access, working knowledge of Microsoft Office, Internet,

Lotus Notes applications.  Knowledge of SAP System will be an advantage.

• Strong English language skills preferably with an ability to prepare, present and

discuss findings in a written or oral form.  Strong analytical and research skills are

desired.

• A good team player able to work in a multi-cultural environment.

• Ability to prioritize tasks, manage time efficiently and flexibility to absorb ad hoc tasks

and work under pressure.

.

The incumbent will perform the following duties:

• Undertake control, planning, analysis, management and reporting processes for IFC

funds including preparing and regular monitoring of Program budgets, ensuring funds

use in compliance with WB/IFC policies and procedures and prepare required financial

reports. 

• Process variety of accounting transactions using SAP system; perform Cashier duties

and maintain petty cash journal; perform accounts reconciliation; monitor Trust Funds.

• Monitor staff time recording and leave and attendance using appropriate systems.

• Maintain asset inventory and conduct regular physical checks of assets to update

records and identify inconsistencies. 

• Keep financial files according to donors’ requirements, maintain internal databases,

provide guidance on WB/IFC policies to internal and external clients, provide training

to junior staff.

For full consideration, please submit your letter of application accompanied by the CV

attention: Office Administrator before May 20 via e-mail:  WBYemen@worldbank.org

Only short-listed candidates will be contacted.

BUSINESS DISTRIBUTOR/RESIDENT

SALES REPRESENTATIVES REQUIRED

M/s ARAB EMIRATES BANDAG CO. LLC, (a Galadari Group

Co.), is a pioneer in Rubber Lining & Moulding, sales & service

of Heavy Duty Conveyor Belt, and Tyre Retreading/Repairs,

committed to provide quality service and catering to the U.A.E.

market since 1973. We also an ISO 9001-2000 Certified

Company.

We are proud to announce that we have been appointed Sole

Distributors by M/s Esbelt, of Spain. The areas of exclusivity cov-

ered are UAE, Bahrain, Saudi Arabia, Yemen, Oman and Qatar.

M/s Esbelt are specialist manufacturers and supplier of Light Duty

Conveyor Belts, profiles and extruded round & Vee belting. Their

products are available in and over 60 countries and on all five con-

tinents.

We are looking for Business Distributors / Resident Sales

Representatives (suitably qualified and experienced) in Yemen

region. Established Companies having knowledge of the product

or dealing with products that compliment Light Duty Belts, may

forward their enquiries to the following:

The General Manager

P.O. Box 2244, Dubai, UAE

Tel: 00971-4-2858317 / 2861160

Fax:  00971-4-2858891

E-mail: aebandag@emirates.net.ae

STUDY IN THE USA!

MASTER’S DEGREE PROGRAMS

The American Embassy and AMIDEAST are pleased to announce that applications are now being accept-

ed for master’s degree studies in the United States under the J. William Fulbright Scholarship Program.

Applications are for Fulbright grants beginning August/September 2007. Fulbright grants provide fund-

ing for two years of master’s degree study in the U.S. in all fields of study except medicine, dentistry,

pharmacy and engineering.

Qualified applicants must have:

• A Bachelor of Arts or Bachelor of Science (four or five-year degree) from an accredited institution 

awarded at least one year prior to application;  

• Demonstrated ability to undertake advanced studies with “Very Good” or higher grade point average  

(Yemeni educational scale);

• One-year work experience (volunteer or paid); and

•  English language skills.

Applicants must also be Yemeni citizens currently residing and working in Yemen.

Excellent applicants holding bachelor’s degrees in any field of study are welcome to apply. Learn more

about studying in the U.S. by visiting AMIDEAST offices.

To obtain application forms and to receive further details, please visit or contact AMIDEAST at:

AMIDEAST Sana’a: Algiers St. #66, P.O. Box 15508, Sana’a. Telephone: 01-400-279/80/81. GSM:

711416660/733033334. Fax: 01-206-942. E-mail: yemen@amideast.org 

AMIDEAST Aden: 162 Miswat St., P.O. Box 6009, Khormaksar, Aden. Tel/Fax: 02-232-345, 

02-235069. GSM: 711421313. E-mail: aden@amideast.org

Complete application submissions must include:

1.  The Fulbright application, available at AMIDEAST;

2.  Contact information, including phone number(s) and location;

3.  An International or ITP TOEFL® score of 550 (scores may not be older than 2 years from date 

of application);

4.  Certified copies in English of all undergraduate transcripts and undergraduate diplomas; and

5. Three letters of recommendation in English from individuals familiar with the applicant’s 

achievements.

NOTE: Applicants who do not have a valid Paper-Based International TOEFL® score should contact

AMIDEAST immediately to arrange for the ITP TOEFL® examination.

COMPLETED APPLICATION PACKETS MUST BE RECEIVED AT AMIDEAST OFFICES IN

SANA’A OR ADEN NO LATER THAN JUNE 14, 2006.
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«_Œ/ ±FdË· ßFOb �b«œ

Ë°Nc« «∞ªDV «_∞Or ô ¥ºFMU ≈ô √Ê ≤d≠l ¢FU“¥MU

«∞ªU∞BW Ë±u«ßU¢MU «∞BUœÆW ≈∞v 
§LOl √≠d«œ√_ßd… «∞Jd¥LW ËØU≠W ¬‰ (�b«œ)
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By: Yemen Times Staff 

AA
bout four hundred poets
from around the Arab
World attended the
Second Forum for Arab
Young Poets which was

held on April 22-26 at the Cultural
Center in Sana'a. 

The event was inaugurated by
Minister of Culture Khaled Al-
Rowaishan by the opening of a Yemeni
plastic arts exhibition and some of the
Ministry's publications. 

Later, the speech festival began with
Al-Rowaishan calling this second round
of Young Poets Forum as "Mohammed
Al-Maghoot Round." Al-Maghoot is a
renowned Arab writer from Syria who
died last month.

The speech of the preparatory
committee was delivered by Yemeni
poet and writer Abdul-Karim Al-Razihi.
He said the participants are establishing
in Sana'a a "democratic republic" for
poetry. 

Egyptian poet Karim Abdul-Salam
delivered a speech on behalf of the
participants, pointing out the
significance of this event which
somehow makes up for "Arab political
and cultural failures."

The inauguration ceremony saw Arab
musical pieces performed by Yemeni
singers.

The ceremony was attended by
cultural and intellectual notables such as
Dr. Abdulaziz Al-Maqaleh, Kamal Abu
Deeb and other Arab guests. 

Throughout the week, some ten poetic
recitals took place with many poets
delivering the best of their creation.
Criticism also found a place among the
poetry-dominated function. A number of
critical sessions were presented by
Yemeni and Arab critics such as Dr.
Salah Fadhl, Egyptian, Dr. Hatim Al-
Sakr, Iraqi, Dr. Mohammed Abdul-
Muttalib, Egyptian and Dr. Salman
Kasid, Iraqi.

The Arab poets also took a tour of
some attractions in Yemen such as Al-
Mahweet province. They expressed their
admiration of the country and the
people. On the eve of Wednesday, a
closing ceremony was held at the
Cultural Center at which the participants
were awarded. Their speech
underscored the importance of
organizing such activities and
encouraging the Arab talents so as to
achieve awakening in all aspects of life.

The conclusive statement of the
Forum called for adoption of effective
literary criticism and freedom of
expression and thought. They also
advocated the coexistence of
generations and literary genres without
discrimination as well as the essence of
creation irrespective of narrow
categorization.

The statement also suggested the
following: regular annual holding of the
Forum; setting up criteria that live up to

the ambitions and objectives of the
Forum; compiling the contributions of
the participant poets and critics in one
book; varying the activities of the
Forum every year; organizing work
sessions for poets and critics to enliven
the Forum and hosting a website for the
Forum. 

Kamal Abu Deeb honored
As part of the activities of the Sana'a
Forum for Young Poets, famous Arab
critic and poet Kamal Abu Deeb was
honored. The honoring began with a
critical session on the works of Abu
Deeb. Dr. Abdulaziz Al-Maqaleh (from
Yemen), Dr. Salah Fadhl (from Egypt)
and Dr. Hatim Al-Sakr (from Iraq) took
part in the session which was
coordinated by Dr. Ibrahim Al-Jaradi. 

Dr. Al-Maqaleh presented a critical
paper on the celebrated intellectual titled
"Laud of Friendship." He pointed out
that Abu Deeb should be recognized
justly for the radical shift he caused in
the structure of the modern Arab
criticism. 

"He is among few Arabs who lived in

the West and realized without doubt the
dimension of its imperial project aiming
at controlling the World culturally and
politically," he added. 

He continued that Abu Deeb once had
a friend with similar attitudes to
intellect, art and people. That was the
late thinker Edward Said. "They
resembled each other and cooperated to
correct the misrepresented image of
Arabs in the West. They understood how
dangerous it is to melt oneself in the
otherness and get astounded at technical
achievements. They also realized the
importance of modernism as an
inevitable necessity in life, literature and
arts and for countering the conventional
constant styles in literary creation and
criticism." He said that both men gave
the West more than what they gained
from it. 

The friendship between Al-Maqaleh
and Abu Deeb was formed, according to
the former, through a series of surprises.
The first one was Abu Deeb's "The
Rhythmic Structure of Arab Poetry,"
which was published while Dr. Al-
Maqleh was a PhD student at Ain Shams

University, Egypt. The second one
predated the first. It was through Abu
Deeb's majestic rendition of Edward
Said's "Orientalism". "I had not known
that translation should be as charming
and fascinating," Al-Maqleh noted. 

The third surprise was when Al-
Maqleh met Abu Deen in person for the
first time hen the latter came to Sana'a as
a visiting professor to the Arabic
Language Department at the Faculty of
Arts. "I was astonished at his humility,
beauty of soul, purity, and diligence,"
described Al-Maqleh.

The fourth surprise that further
enhanced the bond between Al-Maqaleh
and Abu Deeb was the latter's
"Convincing Views Toward a Structural
Approach to Pre-Islamic Poetry."
According to Al-Maqaleh, that book
increased "our contact with our old
poetic tradition."

Then, Dr. Salah Fadhl spoke about the
critical experience of Kamal Abu Deeb.
He gave an account of situations where
he met Abu Deeb who is a "critical
lifetime companion and an energy that
emanated in the 1970s of the last

century."
He added, "His project grew in the

womb of poetry. He was in the first
place a poet. He was distinguished
among the structural critics by this
warm, fertile, creative growth."

He enumerated characteristics of the
critical language of Abu Deeb such as
simplicity, freshness, and accuracy. All
that enabled him to "jump over the
approach barricades and mix the
achievements of generative structural
criticism with the linguistic structural
criticism."

Then he concluded his presentation
with three points summarizing the most
remarkable achievements of Abu Deeb
which are: the theoretical establishment
of Arab poetics; re-reading of Arab
poetry in totality; and presenting a brand
new criticism construction.

Then Dr. Hatim Al-Sakr took his turn
in describing the experience of Abu
Deeb whose critical works are

"infectious." He then listed some of the
characteristic features of Abu Deeb as a
critic starting from the 1970s of the last
century up to the present day. 

At the end, Minister of Culture Khalid
Al-Rewishan stepped onto the stage and
delivered a speech saying that we should
recognize our intellectuals who
contribute much to our life. "They are
the towering trees who taught us how to
speak," he said. 

Then a host of young poets along with
the Minister and the guests of honor
presented a memorial, certificate of
recognition and an honorary plaque to
Dr. Kamal Abu Deeb who, on his part,
dedicated his honors to three Yemeni
figures: Dr. Abdulaziz Al-Maqaleh,
Khalid Al-Rewishan and novelist Zaid
Mutee' Dammag. "I also dedicate it to
Yemen, Sana'a and the Qat of Sana'a",
he added describing that it was in Yemen
where he knew "how to listen, think and
become a human being".

Sana'a Forum for Young Poets, shows
masterpieces, honors Kamal Abu Deeb

By: Yemen Times Staff

TT
he film of Yemeni

director Hamid Al-

Oqabi is currently

taking part in a

three-day festival in

Paris, France. 

“Al-Ritaj Al-Mabhoor” is a

film based on a poem, having

the same title, by Kuwaiti poet

Abdulaziz Su’ood Al-Babutain.

The dramatic and cinematic

treatment of the film has got

critical praise. 

Al-Oqabi wrote the scenario

of the 35-minute film. It was

shot in different areas in Yemen

including the historical city of

Zabid, Old City of Sana’a, and

Dar Al-Hajar.

The technical crew of the film

was French. The film starred

Sa’di Yonus, Iraqi, Linda Al-

Khalidi, a French oriental

dancer, and three kids: Abdul-Rahman Al-Oqabi,

Tayseer Al-Zabidi and Kadhim Al-Oqabi. 

Director Hamid Al-Oqabi says that he tried first

to shoot the film in Kuwait, Jordan, and Algeria.

Those attempts were foiled due to security concerns

and prolonged procedures. Then he decided to

come to Yemen. 

He narrated his experience with the poem: “I

lived in the poem and tried to

make it into a short story. Then

I reread it and attempted to

further dive in it and fly in its

atmospheres.”

He put no restrictions on his

imagination and eventually

arrived at a dramatic

treatment. Then came the

writing of the scenario which

was later referred to the poet

himself for remarks. The

director then incorporated the

poet’s observations and

rewrote the scenario. “I still

read the poem today even after

writing the scenario,” he said. 

This is his third poem-based

film. His first one titled “An

Attempt to Write with a Poet’s

Blood,” was based on a poem

by Dr. Abdulaziz Al-Maqaleh

titled “An Attempt to Write

with Al-Khawarij’s Blood.”

The second film was based on

a poem by Sa’di Yosuf titled “The Hymn of Life.”

His future enterprise is expected to be another

film based on Baisan Abu Khaled’s “Elegies of

Insanity.”

Hamid Al-Oqabi was born in the province of

Hodeidah, Yemen, in 1972. He is now doing a PhD

in France related to aesthetic and theoretical

contribution to cinema.

By: Yemen Times Staff 

LL
ebanese singer May Nasr sang a number of
songs on the eve of Tuesday April 26 at the
Sana’a-based Culture House. The concert
was organized by the Orient Cultural
Organization which is directed by Dr.

Abdul-Wahab Al-Maqaleh. The concert was attended by
a large audience including Sana’a Mayor Dr. Yahya Al-
Sha’eebi.

Mai sang a group of songs originally performed by
Lebanese celebrity Fayrouz. She also sang Egyptian
songs that drew applause from the audience. Her
dedicated performance compelled wonder. 

As she described herself, May was introduced to her
mentor and spiritual father Mr. Fareed Abul Kheir in
1997 who patronized her in terms of music direction and
also introduced her to his closest friend Mr. Zaki Nassif.
She took voice training and classes and continued since
2004 to take voice training with Mrs. Badia Haddad,
former voice trainer of Fayrouz.

May Nasr made solo performances and took part in
group events as well as Radio and TV appearances. 

May Nasr singing at the concert.

Translated by Edward FitzGerald

Then to the rolling Heav’n 

itself I cried,

Asking, “What lamp had 

destiny to guide 

“Her little children 

stumbling in the dark?”

And - “A blind understanding!” 

Heav’n replied. 

27

Young Arab poets recited the best of their works, treating a variety of different subjects.

Dr. Kamal Abu Deeb delivering his speech. (From left to right) Dr. Salah Fadhl, Dr. Kamal Abu Deeb, Dr. Hatim Al-Sakr and Dr. Abdulaziz Al-Maqaleh

Hamid Al-Oqabi.

May Nasr sings
at Culture House

A new Yemeni film in a
Paris movie festival



By: Amenah bint Natera
amenahbintnatera@hotmail.com

II
n the past few years my interest in
Yemeni society has gone from a
fascinating interest to an intense
fascination and a move to action.
You will ask what action would you

take and in what direction? And directed to
whom?

Well, for that I have to give you some
background. Presently I live in NY where
I am surrounded by Yemeni, in their Deli’s
(24 hour grocery stores), in the Masajid
and in my place of work – one of the
biggest NYC Public Hospitals and besides
the oldest one in America. Yemen has from
the beginning been a place of mystery yet
of almost “home calling” to my soul. And
for years I have endeavored to read on dif-
ferent aspects of the society. Its food, its
music, its poetry and its ways; all of these
are so similar to my own maternal culture. 

As I have gotten to know Yemenis
through conversations, their questions and
their answers to my questions, the books I
read, the music I hear and the events I see
unfold within the country; my fascination
has, to say the least, intensified. When
things happen there, I feel as though my
adopted “homeland” is calling and tugging
at my heart strings. And recently I have
made conscious efforts to help Yemen in
any way that I can, be it through my own
line of work in Healthcare or through
Academic circles with my professors and
fellow students and even at the Masajid
where I put all of my life experiences to
work to bring about information that is of
use to all Yemeni here and back home.
And I volunteer where I can, putting as
much into the effort as I can…a way of
bringing my little bit of excellence to what
Yemen means.

Recently the flurry of activity is increas-
ing in Yemen; elections, social and eco-
nomic changes and hopes these bring
about, as well as opinions on a variety of
subjects that brings out that inquiring mind
in Yemen. Not all is rosy however, and I
need not bring this to the table; you are
more aware than I what goes on within
Yemen…I happen to see from the outside
for now.

Where I want to lend my voice and my
opinion is in education relating to
women’s issues. Why not, I happen to be a
woman…but like most things in life one
has to sometimes go around the block a
few times before one can go straight in
through the front door. So I start here,
where this voice of Yemen starts –the
Yemen Times.

A woman’s role as I see it is varied and
is now in this new millennium changing
rapidly because of the advances in tech-
nology, the expectations of societies
world-wide on us and closer to home the

expectations and needs of our children and
husbands. And it is because of these needs
and expectations that I feel Yemeni
women need to jump-start there lives to
propel them further into the cutting edge,
shall we say, of society. We need to be
informed for our children’s sake. We
should be, and usually are, the front line
answerers to our kids questions in
life…we have them most of the
time…their attention is riveted on us and
ours on them…so it behooves us to be
informed in many ways to better bring up
our children for their own future…

Imagine; in the last twenty years we
have had an explosion of usage in televi-
sion, VCRs, DVDs, mobile phones, inter-
net and the latest SMS, iPods and satellite
radios…only God knows what else will
come along the next twenty
years…Wouldn’t our children be better
served if we knew not only how to use
these devices but understand -more impor-
tantly, how these things impact our lives
for better and for worse?

For better…we can communicate rapid-
ly; with ease and with much more assur-
ance…if for example, our spouse, son or
daughter, are away from the house, work
or school we will always find them on
their mobiles…no longer do we have to
wait with a tinge of anxiety until they
return. We can see the latest news from
around the world; bringing us closer to fel-
low Muslims or to other on this planet and
we can see how they live, interact and
share their ideas on life. We can form our
own opinions and understanding of this
vast yet ever shrinking world we live
in…we will know what our children see,
and we may feel what they feel when they
see those images transmitted from high
above our heads.

For worse…we all too quickly get
things thrown in our faces; sometimes
faster than we can assimilate and digest
properly. No sooner are we getting com-
fortable with an idea, when a new one
smacks us on TV, in the newspapers or in
that call that comes in the middle of the
night from a far off land…we have so
many family now spread across the world
that its unavoidable. And we may not
always take to new things well, or indeed,
not at all. We may reject off hand some-
thing new because we may not understand
where it is coming from and why is it
arriving so quickly or for that matter, what
to do with the thing in the first place.

So with this in mind we need to remem-
ber that education for women is necessary,
as they are the teachers of our children
from before birth; it is a known fact that
babies know their mother’s voices way
before they are actually born; that they feel
what their mothers feel from the very
womb. It is imperative knowing this, to
educate women to have healthy bodies for

healthy babies; making a conscious choic-
es to seek healthcare help for themselves
and for their children’s sake. And once
they have delivered their children that
they, as mothers, continue to understand
that every word, every action or non-
action on their part affects their children. 

How so? Well imagine you have a
daughter and as she grows you don’t guard
your mouth in front of her and she hears
things that she at her tender age can’t pos-
sibly understand but will imitate her moth-
er and the adults around her (that is how
children learn -through imitation). She
will repeat in almost everyway what her
mother did or said- whether she under-
stands it or not when she is of similar age.
Now imagine this young girl getting ready
for marriage; not knowing what she is
doing or why- it spells disaster for the
future husband and the family she marries
into because they are unaware of who she
really is…blind imitation does not make a
person whole; understanding why and
what you do does.

Let’s take the example in the other
direction…the woman has a boy and he

grows up hearing what his mother says
and does as maybe, opposed to what his
father says and does…knowing that he is
learning through imitation, the lack of
explanation will create a void not easy to
discern or remedy. So the boy grows up to
be a man and he continues to imitate what
he has learned at home and in the outside
world, and when he marries he will proba-
bly insist that his wife and children say and
do in exact imitation what he learned at his
mother and father’s side. There is nothing
wrong in this; except where he does not
actually know why he is doing or asking
others to do these things.

What you see happening is a mountain
created out of a mole hill. What started out
as one woman getting married and having
a child turns into a society that if it remains
with out certain explanations and limita-
tions can turn into a society with
issues…And you will probably say, no
way…you’re exaggerating…but am I? 

When was the last time you asked your
self how could someone have said or done
what they had just said and done? When
was the last time you said something and

later on asked your self what ever pos-
sessed you to say or do that? When was
the last time you demanded an apology
from someone who did or said something
you considered un-called for? And when
was the last time you heard, watched on
TV or read something that was said or
done that made absolutely no sense to
you?

It is because we have asked ourselves
these questions that it becomes imperative
for us to really take a look at our thoughts,
our feelings and what we know to assess if
we are where we need to be. There will be
a ton of things we will never know, grant-
ed. But there are things that we should
know that we have to seriously think
about.

Those are the things that pertain to our
goals in life; what we want for our chil-
dren (be they girls or boys). What we want
for our spouses; many women don’t con-
sider this when they enter a marriage -their
aspirations for their husbands may not
even be thought as either necessary or
needed. Actually it is both; if your husband
knows and understands what you would

like him to be in the future as a person, as
a father, as the head of the family or the
tribe and as your life-mate, he has a better
chance of getting there and of seeing what
others want for his happiness if he knows
you support him not only as a husband but
as a fellow human being. Not to mention,
it serves as an example to your children of
what constitutes a good working relation-
ship between husband and wife and fellow
family members.

Yemeni society is growing exponential-
ly, making it hard to catch up along certain
lines; however, this does not preclude us
setting goals for ourselves and ensuring
the future of our children and their chil-
dren. Education is a must- in it is included
the education that entails understanding of
values, principles and ideas, as is careful
analysis of the directions our lives can
take. We will never know for sure where
we will end up, Allah knows best, in the
meantime, however, we need to make our
steps solid and worthy of our heritage.
There are a lot more Yemeni in this world
and the world is watching from the outside
in…
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CONSULTANT ASSIGNMENT ON
MANAGEMENT TRAINING EVALUATION

TERMS OF REFERENCE

Note: This advertisement is repeated to rectify an inadvertent mistake in its title (issue

941, 27 April) which read “Consultant Assignment Management Trading Evaluation”

where it should be read as “Consultant Assignment Management Training Evaluation”

OBJECTIVES
The objectives of the consulting assignment are: (i) to
evaluate the training programs delivered, and (ii)
based on the evaluation to prepare suggestions on
improvement of them.

SCOPE OF WORK
The consultant should
1. Evaluate of the physical and financial capacity and

sustainability of the training programs to meet
MOPHP strategic needs:

• Relevance and coherence of the training
programs to the National Health Policies;

• Relevance of training programs to trainees
needs;

• Capacity of the training programs in supporting
life-long learning.

2. Evaluate the quality of training in term of input,
process and output dimensions concerning:
• Training resources;
• Training competencies and skills;
• Training materials used;
• Training methodology;
• Quality of curriculum

3. Evaluate the impact of the training
• Improvement of the traineesʼ skills and
knowledge;
• Improvement of traineeʼs performance;
• Improvement of traineesʼ behaviors and
attitude;
• The impact of the external and internal

(working) environment on the optimal use of
the acquired knowledge and skills of the
trainees to improve their performance;

• Changes in the health services performance
(organizational and managerial change).

4. These tasks should be achieved through
• Visits to the HMTC to examine samples of the

traineesʼ field reports, training materials and
methods as well as traineesʼ evaluation;

• Meeting with MOPHP leadership;
• Field visits, development and examination of

scientific sample groups at governorate and
district levels to measure the impact of the
training on improving traineesʼ performance,
to meet their supervisors and colleagues, and

to study the internal and external environment
that might affect their performance.

EXPECTED OUTPUTS
1. Submission to CAU Director a draft written

technical report on the results of the evaluation and
recommendations. The report should be submitted
in 3 months after the commencement of the
assignment.
A team of MOPHP staff will review and comment
the report in 15 days. If the consultant did not
receive any comment, he/she may consider the
report accepted.

2. Submission to CAU Director the final technical
report on the results of the evaluation and
recommendations. This report should be submitted
in 15 days after receiving the MOPHP Teamʼs
comments.

3. Submission to CAU Director a proposal on setting
up a mechanism for ongoing monitoring of training
effectiveness. This report should be submitted to
the CAU Director with the technical report.
The reports should be submitted in English
language in 2 hard copies and 1 electronic file.

REQUIRED QUALIFICATION AND EXPERIENCE
OF THE CONSULTANT
• PhD or Master Degree in Public Health or Health

Management;
• 5 year experience in training;
• Experience in training evaluation;
• Fluent in Arabic and English languages.

OTHER REQUIREMENTS
The Consultant should provide (i) technical proposal
containing the methodology, the work plan an
organization, (ii) itemized financial bid, and (iii) his/her
comments on this TOR.
The Consultant will be expected to hire and manage
a competent team to carry out the data collection and
evaluation. His/her bid should include the
composition, tasks, cost and qualification of this team.
The cost of the work of the team should be given as
separated items in the above mentioned financial bid.

Deadline for application is 3rd of May 2006

The Credit Administration Unit-CAU (Client) within Ministry of Health and Population intends
to hire an individual consultant who will be contracted to carry out the evaluation of the
management training delivered by the Health Management Training Center (HMTC).

The Youth Forum section is an uncensored space for youth-related issues written by Yemen Times readers.

From the outside, looking in…

A world for women
By: Ensijam

TT
echnology has made tremen-
dous progress and impact in
the world of communica-
tions. People living in the era
of modernization have bene-

fited from the many inventions that
helped improve their lives. Taking this
into account then, it is important for
women to learn about technology. The
question then becomes how can they be
encouraged to be involved? Women as
human beings have the same mental abil-
ities as men even though around the
world, men consider women as second
class citizens. In Yemen a man doesn’t
believe in a woman’s abilities to learn or
get involved in governmental issues
except for her role in the home. (Which is
an interesting point, considering homes
are run like mini governments with your
leaders and your constituents, with your
treasury and banking system, shopping-
procurement systems and your opera-
tions system that includes healthcare,
waste management, daycare, education
and other familial institutions)

In western countries, a man uses her as
a model for selling his goods and servic-
es; or uses her body as a tool to attract
customers be these customers male or
female. Yet in both cases men believe it is
necessary to hide the enormous abilities
that exist within women. 

Religiously, women have the same
exact rights and obligations to learn and
in their responsibilities to Allah they
share equally with men and will be held
accountable in equal manner as men will.

Traditionally, it is important to note,
people have believed that behind each
great man there is a great woman. Great
poems in Arabic literature speak of the
importance of teaching women knowl-
edge on a variety of subjects for those
who seek their development and well
being. 

Because women are part of this world
and half of the society, she has the right

to get involved in its technology. She has
about seven roles in her family that she
has to know and juggle well; as mother,
wife, sister, aunt, grandma, daughter, and
so on.  That means if she had learned
about modern inventions and its technol-
ogy, she would be able to manage her life
and effectively prove herself in a man’s
mind. 

According to recent research in
Yemen, 95% of women don’t waste their
time chewing Qat or smoking. They are
healthier and time that enables them to
keep on learning more than men. Women
have stronger ambitions so they are will-
ing to learn about technology not only for
themselves, but for their family, and their
society, instead of wasting their time in
chewing Qat or smoking. 

Technological breakthroughs have
made changes in the physical world.
What was once the limited domain of
men has now opened up for women so
they can participate in jobs previously
considered too difficult encouraging
women to get involved.

The governments and other institu-
tions have to come up to speed with
regards to a woman’s involvement in the
technological world. There are countries
that are coming “of age”; sending women
on missions to different countries or who
donate scholarships within their country
for female participation. This is impor-
tant because it is the educational compo-
nent in our society that produces doctors,
teachers and scholars who will continue
to effectively explain and improve a
woman’s role and her abilities as a pro-
ductive member of society including the
family. This productive role is what also
ensures economic and social growth of
our country. 

A woman considers her search for
learning and its implementation as wor-
ship to Allah which has the same value as
giving birth to babies.

Ensijam is a graduate from Sana’a
University.
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By: Ismail Al-Ghabiri 

Shabab Al-Qotton Team won the

volleyball tourney championship

following his win over its host Al-

Saqr 3-2 sets in an exiting game

Thursday’s afternoon at Al-Saqr

Club Hall in Taiz. 

Shabab Al-Qotton won the title for

the first time in its history when it

qualified for the final after defeating

Al-Shurtah team who failed to retain

the title for the second time in a row. 

The champions played Al-Saqr in

a strong battle attended by thousands

of fans. The guests triumphed the

first and second sets 25-18 and 25-

17 while Al-Saqr came back to win

third and fourth sets 25-22 and 25-

21. But via their experience the

visiting teammates scored ultimate

victory in the fifth set 16-14 to win

the title for the first time. 

Meanwhile, Al-Shurtah downed

Helal Al-Sawbari at Al-Emad Hall in

Sana’a 25-18, 25-17 and 25-13. 

With its won over Al-Saqr, Shabab

Al-Qotton increased its points up to

34, occupying the first place while

Al-Shurtah remained in the second

place with 27 points and Helal Al-

Sawbari ranked seventh in the

tourney with 21 points. 

Shu’alah booked the third place

early with 30 points in the final

competitions of the seventeenth

round last week and meet Wahdat

Aden on Friday. 

Ahli Al-Hodeidah beat its guest

Al-Mina from Aden 3-2 to occupy

the  fifth place with 27 points, with a

set-difference from Al-Saqr who has

the same number of points while Al-

Mina remained in the seventh place

with 25 points. 

In Abyan, Sayoun Team won 3-1

sets over its host Khanfar to rank

sixth in the tourney with 26 points

while the loser remained in the

eighth place with 23 points. 

Al-Shurtah led the away round

after it defeated all the teams, but it

lost two games in the home round,

one to Shabab Al-Qotton and the

other to Al-Mina.

Shabab Al-Qotton 

champs of volleyball tourney

By KRYSTYNA RUDZKI 

LONDON — Chelsea won its

second straight Premier League title

Saturday, and Birmingham City and

West Brom were relegated from

English soccer's top league.

Manchester United striker Wayne

Rooney was carried from the field

with a broken bone in his right foot

that may jeopardize his World Cup

chances.

With two games remaining, Chelsea

clinched the title with a 3-0 home

victory over second-place Manchester

United with goals by William Gallas,

Joe Cole and Ricardo Carvalho.

Birmingham City tied 0-0 with

Newcastle, and West Brom didn't play.

They were relegated to the League

Championship, the level below the

Premier League, because Portsmouth

_ the team ahead of them _ defeated

Wigan 2-1.

Sunderland was relegated several

weeks ago.

Elsewhere, it was: Liverpool 3,

Aston Villa 1; Fulham 2, Manchester

City 1; Everton 1, Middlesbrough 0.

Rooney grimaced in pain and

clutched his right foot after a collision

with defender Paulo Ferreira 10

minutes from the end of United's loss

at Chelsea.

Manchester United later announced

that Rooney had "a fracture of the

base of the fourth metatarsal" that will

idle him for six weeks. England

begins the World Cup on June 10,

exactly six weeks away, against

Paraguay.

In breaking the domination of Man

United and Arsenal, Chelsea parlayed

the riches of billionaire Russian owner

Roman Abramovich into trophies.

However, the Blues won one fewer

trophy this year than last _ and

made few friends doing it.

"During the season I have

thought a couple of times to

close the door and say

goodbye," manager Jose

Mourinho said. "Not at that

moment, but to do it at the end

of the season."

Mourinho has developed a

reputation as a good tactician

and motivator, but many have

soured on his defensive style

of play and his inability to

lose gracefully.

Awarded a winner's medal

after the match, Mourinho

threw it into the crowd,

saying he'd won one last

season. When he was given a

replacement, he also threw that to the

crowd, explaining the fans had played

a major part in Chelsea's 44-game

unbeaten run at home.

Off the field, Alan Curbishley, one

of four coaches mentioned to take

over England's national team, resigned

as manager at English Premier League

team Charlton. The announcement

was made just before Charlton's game

against Blackburn.

Source: http://www.chron.com

LONDON, England suffered a

massive blow when it was confirmed

on Saturday night that star striker

Wayne Rooney had broken his right

foot at Chelsea and would be out of

action for six weeks.

Their opening World Cup fixture

against Paraguay is exactly six weeks

away, on June 10.

There was more disturbing news

for coach Sven-Goran Eriksson when

it was revealed that Newcastle striker

Michael Owen would need another

scan on his foot after making his

comeback at Birmingham.

Rooney was carried off at

Stamford Bridge during the 3-0

defeat to Chelsea after a challenge by

Paulo Ferreira.

First reports at the ground

suggested that the injury might not be

a threat to his place at the World Cup

finals, but later Manchester United

issued a statement saying that the

player had fractured the base of the

fourth metatarsal on his right foot.

Rooney fractured the fifth

metatarsal on the same foot during

the Euro 2004 quarterfinal defeat

against Portugal and it was 10 weeks

before he played again.

Although Rooney will now miss

United's last two games of the season

and England's pre-tournament

friendlies against Hungary and

Jamaica, Eriksson may still feel it

worthwhile to keep him in the squad

in case he recovers sufficiently to

play a role during the tournament.

In 2002 David Beckham broke a

bone in a foot before the finals in

Japan and although he was able to

take part he was not at his best.

Owen, who was returning after a

four-month absence with a broken

foot, played the last 30 minutes of

Newcastle's 0-0 draw at Birmingham.

He was limping near the end and

team officials said he would see a

specialist on Monday.

"When he (Owen) came in he said

he was a little bit concerned -- he

wasn't quite 100 percent happy with

it," Newcastle manager Glenn

Roeder said. "But no sharp pain."

"The thought of Rooney and Owen

not playing for England is not worth

thinking about," Roeder added.

To complete a bad day, Chelsea

captain JohnTerry, expected to be a

key man in England's defense in

Germany, picked up a gash on his leg

in a challenge from Rooney and

required about a dozen stitches.

Source: www.cnn.com

Opening the second round’s

competitions, which were postponed

for disputes between teams,  Sha’abi

Ibb downed its host Al-Yarmouk

team 4-1 in last Friday’s meeting in

Sana’a. The visiting team increased

its points up to 19 advancing to the

fourth place while Al-Yarmouk

remained in its fifth place with 18

points. 

Helal Al-Hodeida thrashed their

guest 22 May from Sana’a 5-1 to

stand third in the tournament with 22

points while the visiting team went

back to the 11th place with 14 points. 

In Mukalla city, titleholder Al-

Telal scored 2-1 victory over its host

Sha’ab Hadramout to rank eighth in

the tournament with 16 points while

Sha’ab Hadramout remained in the

tenth place with 16 points. 

At Al-Shuhada Stadium in Taiz,

Al-Rashid defeated its guest Ta’awen

Ba’adan 3-1. Basem Sa’eed scored

twice for Al-Rashid in minutes 1 and

17 of the first half and Ismail Abu

Bakr Othman netted third in minute

43 of the second half. Sudanese

professional player Omar Al-Sadeq

scored the only goal for Ta’awen

Ba’adan in minute 15 of the second

half. Al-Rashid raised its points to 16

to rank ninth in the tournament while

the loser retarded to the last place

with 11 points. 

In Abyan, Hassan faced a 2-1 loss

at home soil during its meeting with

Shabab Al-Jeel. Striker Mohamed

Al-Tahous scored the first goal for

the visiting team in minute 11 of the

first half while Wasim Al-Qa’ar

answered for his side in minute 13 of

the second half. Al-Tahous added the

second goal for the visitors in minute

43 of the second half increasing his

side’s points to 11. 

In Aden, Al-Shu’alah drubbed

Tadhamun Shabwah 4-1 to rank 12th

in the tournament with 12 points

while the latter remained in the sixth

place with 18 points.

Rooney is ruled out for six weeks

Rooney was injured after a chal-

lenge by Chelsea's Ferreira.

Sha’ab Ibb downs Al-Yarmouk
4-1 as postponed round resumes

Sha’ab Ibb team.

Chelsea Wins 2nd
Straight League Title

Chelsea players celebrate after the soccer

match against Manchester United at Chelsea's

Stamford Bridge ground in London Saturday

April 29, 2006. Chelsea won the game 3-0 and

also clinched the Premier League title for the

second year running.

India, Pakistan, Sri Lanka and
Bangladesh will share the 2011 World
Cup after beating opposition from a
joint Australia-New Zealand bid. 

But the 50-over tournament will take
place Down Under four years later as
agreed by ICC delegates beforehand. 

English authorities were told last
month they could hold the 2019 event
if they pulled out of the race for 2015. 

The decisions still need to be rubber-
stamped by the International Cricket
Council annual conference in July. 

The joint Asian bid won the vote on
2011 by 10 votes to three even though,
under the traditional ICC rotation, it
was Australasia's turn to hold the event. 

The Asian bid was also submitted
late, the four countries having been
granted an extension to 21 April to
present their case to the ICC after fail-
ing to meet the first deadline in March. 

Officials from India, Pakistan, Sri
Lanka and Bangladesh admitted there
is work to do over the next five years. 

"We did a great job. The four coun-
tries put together an impressive presen-
tation and we got 10 out of 13 votes,"
said Lalit Modi of the Indian cricket
board. 

"We are looking forward to it. A lot
of work has to go in. 

"A lot of infrastructure needs to be
put in place. We are mentally geared up
for it. We will do the task at hand." 

Australia and New Zealand shared
World Cup matches between them the

last time the event took place Down
Under in 1992, with Pakistan winning
the final in Melbourne. 

New Zealand and Australia were dis-
mayed to miss out on the 2011 World
Cup but welcomed the 2015 event. 

"I believe our joint 2011 bid was of
the highest possible standard so I am
naturally disappointed that we were
unsuccessful," he said. 

"The 2015 Cricket World Cup will
be a great event for Australasia," said
New Zealand Cricket chief Martin
Snedden. 

"We have the infrastructure and
capability and while 2015 may sound a
long way off planning will soon begin." 

England hosted the first three World
Cup tournaments in 1975, '79 and '83
and the event returned in 1999 when it
was won by Australia. 

The event takes place
in the West Indies for the
first time in 2007. 

Cricket Australia chief
executive James
Sutherland also wel-
comed the decision to
award Australia hosting
rights to the 2009 ICC
Women's World Cup. 

"Winning the rights to
host the next global
women's tournament is
exciting news for the
growth and development
of women's cricket in

Australia," he said. 
Meanwhile, the Twenty20 World

Championship, which will be given a
trial run in an invitational tournament
next year, will coincide with Australia's
next visit for the Ashes. 

The event is planned at two venues,
spread across nine days involving the
world's top eight teams. 

In a model used for Twenty20 Cup
finals day in county cricket, a match
starting at 1000 GMT would coincide
with evening in Australia and New
Zealand. 

A second game at 1400 would meet
prime time in Pakistan and India and a
final match starting at around 1800
would be ideal for TV viewers in the
UK. 

Source: www.bbc.com

England lands Cricket World Cup 

Former West German international
midfielder Wolfgang Overath
suggested on Friday Iran should be
banned from the 2006 World Cup
finals because of a call by Iran's
president to move Israel to Europe. 

Overath, the president of
Bundesliga club Cologne and a
member of West Germany's 1974
World Cup winning team, said FIFA
should consider banning Iran due to
the remarks from President
Mahmoud Ahmadinejad that have
sparked widespread condemnation. 

"Such comments from a head of
state are really grounds enough to
exclude a country," Overath said in
an interview on German television
ahead of Friday's World Cup draw in
Leipzig. 

Iran is one 32 countries that have
qualified for the tournament. 

The Iranian president also
suggested that the Holocaust might
not have happened at a news
conference in the Saudia Arabian
city of Mecca that followed his call

in October for Israel to be "wiped off
the map". 

In Berlin, the German Foreign
Ministry said it had summoned Iran's
ambassador to protest against the
remarks. 

Historians say six million Jews

were killed in the Nazi Holocaust. 
Iran's official news agency IRNA

quoted Ahmadinejad as saying of the
Nazi Holocaust: "Some European
countries insist on saying that Hitler
killed millions of innocent Jews in
furnaces..." 

"Although we don't accept this
claim, if we suppose it is true, our
question for the Europeans is: is the
killing of innocent Jewish people by
Hitler the reason for their support to
the occupiers of Jerusalem?" he said. 

"If the Europeans are honest they
should give some of their provinces
in Europe -- like in Germany, Austria
or other countries -- to the Zionists
and the Zionists can establish their
state in Europe." 

Overath scored 17 goals in 81
matches for West Germany between
1963 and 1974. As well as winning
the World Cup in 1974 he also
played in the 1966 final which the
Germans lost to England. 

Source: www.isfa.com

Overath urges FIFA to ban
Iran from World Cup finals



A competent Secretary is

required, who must have good

Arabic & English,

Correspondence with Excellent

computer skills, Fax: 02-255600

A high school femal graduate

student with 93% science section,

with good English wants to give

private lessons.

for contact: 733976744

A college female student in

English, wants to give private les-

sons, for all levels.

for contact: 733861261   

Would you like someone with

good command of English?

Somebody who can be able to

read write and speak fluently and

with an added basic computer

knowledge, kindly call Ibrahim

on tel no 733-683079 

or 01-448690

Esam Abdul Kareem Naji,

B.A in electrical engineering with

a specialization in computer com-

puter maintenance and net-

works+design of web sites&pho-

toshop.

contact: 733669140

A qualified tours guide,

speaking English, Spanish and

Arabic.

Mukalla, Hadramout gover-

norate

phone: 370452 Mobile:

733855361

I have an excellent experi-

ence in the filled of, Guard and

working in garden, store keep-

ing, and delivery and receiving

materials in proper way. Plus, I

am easy to train and friendly

person to work with. I am open.

for contact: 733 298 927

Sadiq Al-Tayi- Translator

experienced in commercial let-

ters+public relations + adminis-

tration + computer + survey

for contact:711832070

Yehia Mohammed Al-

Kohlani, Experience in tourism

and hotels 6 years ,I am ready to

work any things or any job. I have

high school and I am good in

English writing and spoken

for contact:733052466

Indian male ,18 yrs . experi-

ence in the field of mechanical

engineering, specialized in fabri-

cation, erection and 8 structural

works with knowledge in auto

cad 2005. 

mobile: 711729061

Email:rdeenathayalan@yahoo.co

.in

Specialist teacher in both lan-

guages Arabic and English, wants

to give private lessons. for all lev-

els(suitable price)

for contact:733946335

Graduate from Sana’a uni-

versity specialist accountancy.

languages knowledge: Arabic -

English and German very well.

computer skills-ms office,

Internet, Data base

(Access)PCH(A+1)

for contact: 733767068

Yemeni male graduate from

great Britain college from 98

until may 05. the subject out

as(IT) computer+ Business +

Maths + English language+ busi-

ness English 5 years work experi-

ence plus a course in selling and

marketing in the biggest + com-

panies in the gulf region-looking

to work as a marketing or admin-

istration manager in Yemen sales

Mr.Waleed Saif

for contact: 733680631-

01/300949.

2 years experienced Indian

female Physiotherapist (B .PT)

currently in Yemen. Needs suit-

able placement. Contact:

733082451

Salwa Saeed - High School -

Good use computer and internet -

and study English - I want to

work any where.

Contact Address: 235878 or

711595801.

Al-Asbahi area large one stroy

villa 600 sq.mtrs. Half a bsmnt

300 sq.mtrs. 14 large rooms. 7bth

rooms., large kitchen, large din-

ing room. master bed room 8*6.

cocktail reception 14*6. large

garden 2,000 sq.mtrs compound

area.monthly $ 2,500.00.

Ahmed muraisi: 733802855

Furnished one story villa in

Hadda, Madina sakaniya, 3 bed

rooms, 2 bath rooms, mafraj,

room dining room, garden, very

clean, furniture gard’’A’’

monthly rent $ 700.00

Ahmed muraisi: 733802855

Fully furnished one story

villa, Al-Asbahi area 2 bed

rooms, 2bths, mafraj room

european, dining room.,

kitchen, nice garden with ter-

race., expats only... monthly

rent $ 800.00

Villa 2 story fully fur-

niched for rent in Hadda area

near town. Monthly $800

for contact: 420060 

(Just for foriegners) A

very spacious flat for rent . It

is located 10 minutes walk

from the City Center. 4 big

rooms, 2 bath rooms, 2 mas-

sive setting rooms. Contact:

01-275803 

Two cars for rent along

with the drivers who are flu-

ent in English . The cars are :

-Mitsobishi, Pajeru, model

99. Mercedes Benz - S320 ,

in good condition , model 95

call Mr Amer Al-Howaidi at

733744480

Required:Good quality

laptop computer, reasonable

price.

for contact:711384146:

Admiral washing

machine lo-k suitable for big

hotel.  New in it’s C made in

USA. for more information

contact by the following

mobile number 71722865 

Have you sought treatment

without an actual medicine. Now,

you can! For more information on

the ancient Chinese pharaohs art

of healing. Call Dr.A.Latif

A.Mageeda consultant in

Yoga,magnet therapy and

Acupressure at : 73524031

Green card, number 40063348

issued from U.S, belongs to

Khaled S. Al-Saidi is lost. If

found please call 711281064

Treatment 
Without actual 

Medicine 

Society 

Computers 

Vehicles

Real Estate

Job Seekers

Situation
Vacant

Coupon for Free Classified Ads. (All Personal Ads - All Free of Cost)

For Sale Required  Available For Lease   For Hire/Rent  Job Require  Situation Vacant
Others

Details: 

Contact Address:

Please cut this coupon and send it to Yemen Times fax: 268276 or P.O. Box 2579 - Sana’a
For more info. contact  71200540

Al-Nasim Cargo Forwarders for

packing, customs clearance, domestic 

& international forwarding air & sea.

Contact: Al-Nasim cargo forwarder. 

Al-Zubairi St Sanaa. Tel: 275903 /

216048 / 407905

ITS Global Logistics,  Tel: 967-

1-218142 (5 lines) Fax: 967-

1209940, Email: itsgroup@y.net.ye

itsglobalogistic @y.net.ye P. O. Box

25159, Sana’a., R.O.Y. Business

Development, 73217750, Customer

Service: 73212272 Operations:

73217752 Exemptions 73214700.

Global Logistic Solutions

International Fright Forwarding

(Land/Sea/ Air). Weather Proof

Packing, Removals & Warehousing

International Door-to-door services

(Worldwide). Customs clearance,

Exemptions,

www.ITSGLOBALOGISTICS.

COM

YEMEN PACKING &

FORWARDING CO.(YEMPAC

CARGO)  Tel: 967-1-447126 /7, Fax:

967-1-447128

E-mail: yempac@ y.net.ye.

Operations: 408518/7904603 

Sales & Mkt: 408517/ 73208898,

Clearance: 408518.

Global Logistic Solutions

International Fright Forwarders

(Land/Sea/Air). Weather Proof

Packing, removals & Warehousing

International Door-to-door services

(Worldwide). Customs clearance,

Exemption

Cargo ®∫s

Al-Nasim Travel & Tourism. For

domestic & international air tickets

with price busters all airlines. 

Tel: 219890/ 270750

Alkumaim Trading Center Hadda st.

Travels

Classifieds19

Send your Free Ads by Fax: 268276 or by P.O.Box: 2579 Sana'a 

1 May , 20061 May , 2006

Tel.: 967-1-447126/7

Fax: 447128

Email: yempac@y.net.ye

P.O.Box: 3366.

SANA’A REPUBLIC OF YEMEN.

WEB:http/www.yempac.com.

THE BEST IN
PACKING & 

FORWARDING
«_≠Cq ≠w «∞∑GKOn Ë«∞MIq ≠w «∞OLs

Electricity problems 177, Emergency Police 199, Fire Brigade

191,Water Problems 171,  Telephone enquires 118, Accident

(Traffic) 194, Foreign Affairs,  202544/7, Interior Affairs

252701/7, Immigration 250761/3, Inter-City Bus Co. 262111/3,

Ministry of Communication 325110/1/2/3, Radio Station

282061, Tourism 254032, TV Station 332001/2,  Red Crescent

203131/3,  Tel-Yemen 7522202, Y.net 7522227

Continental Airlin 278668/283082 

Egypt Air               273452/275061

Gulf Air 440922

Lufthansa                     213400/219252

Qatar Air ways Fax: 506038, Tel.506030/5

YBRANCH OF FOREIGN BANKS:

Yemen Gulf Bank Fax:260824  Tel.967-1-260823

Head Office: Al-Zubiry St.                274371/2/3

Al-Qasr St. 272802/1/20

Aden : Al-Ma’alla St: 02/247402/3/4

Hodeidah 26th Sept. St.: 03/219506/7

Taiz Al-Mugama’a St.:       04/210568/9/50

Mukalla:Hay Addis-main St.    05/352917-306560

Shamil Bank of Yemen & Bahrain

Tel. 264775 ,264702. Fax. 264703,503350

Yemeni Banks:

Central Bank 274310/1

Yemeni Islamic Bank Sana’a: 401552-205678

Taiz: 251816

Hodeidah: 213517

YBRD 271623/4

Hertz Rent a Car                    Sana’a: 01-440309

Aden: 02-245625 

Yemen Limozeen Rent A Car     417346-7927920

Abu Riyadh CO. Sana’a: 410594

FORD/HYUNDAI 267791

MERCEDES-BENZ 01 - 330080

NISSAN Hodeidah: 200150/49, Sana’a: 400269 

OPEL / GM 203075

SUZUKI 02 - 346000

TOYOTA 445362/3

APTECH_ Sana’a: 01 -446880

Computer Education              Aden: 02-237199

(Internet Focussed Taiz: 04-250343

Curriculum, E-commerce,   Mukalla: 05-307492

ISO 9001 Certified) Hodeidah: 03-206998

American Academic Institute 249294

CMT House                              Tel:967-(0) 1 - 513648

Infinit Education                                        Tel:444553

German Language Institute 200945

Modern British Institute (University Branch)  203689

New Horizons Computer _

Learning Centers Tel: 01-448573-449356/7/8/9

NIIT Q u a l i t y _  

C o m p u t e r E d u c a t i o n Tel. 445518/7-442073

The British Institute for Languages 440719/415812

Sana’a: 441024/5, Aden:243124

Hodeidah:219643,  Ibb:406882

Taiz: 213489, Mukalla 309190

Sana’a: 440170, Aden: 248177

Hodeidah:234982,   Ibb:411988

Mukalla 302641,Seuyn: 402469

Shabua: 202326

Tel. 448541/448543

Fax: 00967 1 448542

Mobile: 00967 73 200 654

Sana’a: 416751

Dr. Abdulsalam N. Awas                         602408

Shehab Dental Center                 400443/218824

Al-Nasim Cargo Forwarders                    407905

Al-Rawahil Olympia 278674/7909110

Aramex Sana’a: 441024/5

Griffin Logistics Ltd. Sana’a: 440166

Gulf Air Cargo 440891/344467

ITS Global Logistics 218142

Marib Travel & Tourism      

(Cargo Division)    441109/126  Fax: 440733 

Yempac Sana’a 208898-408518

Yemen German Hospital (open heart surgery) 

Tel. 418000, Fax: 418116

Modern German Hospital Tel. 600000/602008

E-mail:felixpene@hotmail.com   Fax. 601889

The First Consultant center for the skin, 

venerial Diseases & Infertility            205517-73807737

Orthopedic & plastic specialist Hospital+967-1-633922

E-mail:orthosp@hotmail.com

Al-Jumhury Hospital                           274285

Al-Thawra Hospital 246366

Yemen Specialized Hospital 224963

SANA’A:

Al-Yamama Palace Suites: 236230

Best Western Hadda Hotel:             415212/5

Hadda Town: 415900

Raipon Hotel & Suites 504016/7/8

ADEN:

Amoudi Plaza Hotel (02) 247000/1-5

Elephant BayBeach Resort (02) 202055

Arab Insurance Company Sana’a 606810/1/2/3/4/5 Fax /6

Aden:257875-260827, Taiz; 260744 , 

Hodeidah: 279672/3, Mukalla: 309744,  Abyan: 604030

Al-Watania Insurance  (Y.S.C.)

Sana’a 272713/874     Aden: 243490-242476

Taiz 250029               Hodeidah   219941/4/6

Marib Insurance Sana’a: 206129/8/13

Aden: 255668                           Taiz:240927/34

Hodeidah: 219545/8

Trust Yemen Ins. & Reinsurance Co. 264263

Yemen Islamic Insurance Co. Sana’a 284193, 

5 lines,        Taiz: 258881,    Aden: 244280

Yemen Insurance company Sana’a: 272806/ 272962/43,

Aden: 247617 Taiz: 250345             Mukalla: 304292,

Hodeidah: 261839/17

Al-shaibani restaurant super delux Tel: 266375 - 505290

Fax:267619

Indian Restaurant (home delivery available)

Contact: Mr. Sunny Joseph 263925-71150769

Chilli House Rest. for brost, Cabab etc.. 73568079

Canadian International School          418510 , 423364

International Turkish Schools     Sana'a         448258/9

Taiz     205593

Al-Hussein National Schools                  412826/7

Sam Yemen International School       Diplomatic Area 

Tel: 440353-440354           fax: 440355

Al-Majd Yemen School 206159

Middle East Modern School 447118

The English School                              419308

Tulip School   412249

Ienshams Modern school    671275, 671140

Rainbow Pre-School 414-026/424-433

AL-JANDUL Supermarket. 01-422610

Urwa Wautqa Int. Auth. Trans.  Arabic-English-French -

German-Russian-Italian- Spanish-Polish-Dutch- Iranian-

Turkish-Eriterea-Amharic. 01-240515

Abu Yaser Travel&Tourism tel:611560

Falcon Business Travel Center Tel: 446250 Fax: 446251

Al-Nasim Travel 270750

Al-Sunidar  Fax: 265202 Tel. 241667/500808

Apollo Business Travel Center   Tel. 444000/888

Arabian Peninsula T & T Tel. 414755/410302

Fax: 414798  

Murjan Travel       Fax : 400555  Tel/ 216028 / 466881

Universal Business Travel Center    Tel: 441158/9/60

American World University, Rep. by IS academy      Tel. 01 -

417441 Fax: 412039

University of Applied and Social Science

Sana’a: 412442 Fax: 412441

Aden: 234533 / 234960

Queen Arwa University                   449971/2

Sana’a University                            250553/4/5

Alandalus University Tel:675567, Fax:675885

UNIVERSITIES

TRAVEL

Translations

Supermarket

SCHOOLS

RESTAURANT

INSURANCE COMPANIES

HOTELS

HOSPITALS

FREIGHT FORWARDERS

DENTAL CLINIC

COURIERS

COMPUTER EDUCATION

AND INSTITUTES

CAR SHOWROOMS 

& SPARE PARTS

CAR RENTAL

BANKS

AIRLINES

 

Per line, Per year $300 Only
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To particepate 
contact: 71200540

CALYON
Corporate and Investment Bank
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Al-SHAIBANI RESTAURANT SUPER DELUX

Haddah st. infront of  Al- Komaim Center

Tel: 266375 - 505290

Fax: 267619

P.O Box: 5465

TransGlobal logistics & Services Ltd.

Worldwide Movers

Tel: 01-444226/442135  FAx :01-442133

P.O Box 16884, Sana’a, Rep.of Yemen.

Email: transglobal@yemen.net.ye

Email:transglobal2@yemen.net.ye

Website: www.transglobalyemen.com

Cargo
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Head Office - Sana’a - Hadda St. Opsite Qatar Airways

Tel. : 200765 

Fax. : 407570

Branch :

Algeria St. - arround of Baghadad St.

Tel. : 219708

D I G I T A L  P H O T O  E X P R E S S

Ahmed Muraisi
Real Estate Rentals

Tel: 733802855

Hadda and Diplomatic Areas

• FURNISHED ONE STORY VILLA, Al-ASBAHI AREA. 

2 BD.RMS., 2BTH. RMS., LIV. RM. DIN. RM., GARDEN, 2 CARS

PARKING. MONTHLY RENT $ 800.00

• FURNISHED ONE STORY VILLA, HADDA, MADINA

SAKANIYA, 3 BD. ROOMS, 2 BTHRMS., LIV. RM., DIN.RM.,

GARDEN, VERY CLEAN. MONTHLY RENT $ 700.00

•  FURNISHED FLAT. DIP. AREA. 2BD.RM.,1 BTH., $ 400.00

• TOW STORY VILLA, HADDA, OFF IRAN ST. 10 ROOMS,  

6 BTHS., 2KITCHENS., 2 CARS PARKING. RENT $ 1,200.00

• AL-ASBAHI AREA, 5 MINUTES FROM HADDA. XTRA

LARGE ONE STORY VILLA, 600 SQ. MTRS, 14 LARGE

ROOMS, 7 BTH.,ROOMS. COMPOUND 2,000 SQ. MTRS

LARGE   GARDEN. EXCUTIVE’S CHOISE,

MONTHLY $ 2,500.00 




 

 



Arabic language courses for expatriates

The Sana’a Institute of the Arabic Language(SIAL) offers 

Arabic language  courses for non-native speakers expatriates in Sana’a

Three days a week, two hours a day,

Class time: 4:30p.m-6:30p.m

Duration: Six weeks, from May 13
th

to June 21
th

2006

Tuition fees only $180

Assailah street, Old city Sana’a

Location in one of the most beautiful areas in the old city of Sana’a, 

Easy to get to, Parking places available.

Registration period: from April 24
th  

to May 10
th

Book your place now as seats are limited

to register and inquiries, please contact us at the following address

Tel: (967-1)284330, 284331,

Fax: (967-1)284329,

Email us at info@sialyemen.com

please visit: our website at http://www.sialyemen.com
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Yemen’s first and most widely-read English-language newspaper

By: Ismail Al-Ghaberi

VV
illagers in

Yemen are not

only known for

their diversified

a g r i c u l t u r e

customs, but are also well-

famed for their different

musical styles bestowed on

them by the countryside

environment. 

Yemeni rural territories enjoy

unique multi-faceted folkloric

implications including rural

music that has enriched

people’s culture over the ages

and are deeply rooted in the

personality of the Yemeni

villager despite foreign

influence, historical eras and

local hardships.

Yemeni folkloric songs and

melodies are special and

unique in the sense that they

are reflecting an exquisite

musical style illustrating and

distinguishing the people’s life

in Yemen with all its

peculiarities. For instance,

farmers have their own styles

and rhythms, and so do

laborers, fishermen…etc.

There are songs for happy

occasions like marriage, and

sad ones that express hardships

displaying inner sentiments of

the people of different social

segments. Even children have

their own melodies and

rhymes.

Despite the fact that the

Yemeni rural music can be said

to be variant and multi-

dimensional in its rhythms,

which is due to the

diversification of terrains and

environment, most of the music

have one aspect in common,

this is nature and love for the

land. 

The environment, nature of

work, and living styles all are

implied in the musical style of

people and express in a very

magnificent way their

psychological interaction with

the environment around them,

whether plain agricultural,

marine, or mountainous lands.

The rhythmic styles as well

as poetry composed express the

human experience of people

living in different terrains and

all this differentiations

contribute in complementary

way to the spiritual integration

of Yemeni People living in a

unified country. 

There are established musical

movements or schools in

different parts of Yemen. For

instance, AlQumandan musical

style in Lahj, Mohammed Juma

Khan in Hadmaout, Ayoob

Taresh in Taiz.
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Petrochemical plants, refineries.

Heavy, light industrial plants.

Power and desalination plants.

Fuel and water storage tanks.

Oil fields ancillary installations.

Air purification for industry

Marine docks, harbours, deep sea

berths & refinery terminals.

Offshore structures and underwater works.

Pipelines construction and maintenance.

Prefabricated accommodation & office facilities.

Sewage treatment plants & collection networks.

Airports, roads, highways, bridges & fly-overs.

High quality buildings & sports complexes.

Water treatment plants, reservoirs & distribution

systems.

Sanaa
Tel: (967-1) 441638
Fax: (967-1) 441630
E-Mail: cccyemen@y.net.ye

Aden
Tel: (967-2) 377328
Fax: (967-2) 377716
E-Mail: cccaden@y.net.ye

Melodies from the green farms

People like to dance at the melodious country songs.

Shall I compare my lover

to a new illuminating

torch?

From Udein, I am

anxiously waiting for a

caravan leader’s arrival.

I hope to be a cameleer of

a black caravan

To spend time walking

with my lover


